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ROSTELECOM AT A GLANCE 

Rostelecom is Russia’s national long-distance operator, one of
the largest telecommunications companies in the country.
The Company owns and operates a nationwide modern trunk
network enabling the provision of telecommunications services
across the entire Russian Federation. Its network is approximately
200,000 kilometers in length. The digitalization rate is 93% in
channel-kilometers, with 100% digital switching capacity.

In every region of Russia, Rostelecom acts as a “carriers’ carrier,”
interconnecting all local public operators’ networks into a single
national network for long-distance services. The Company is also
a major provider of telecommunications services for state
organizations and governmental agencies, television and radio
broadcasters as well as Internet service providers.

In Moscow, Rostelecom provides fixed-line domestic (DLD) and
international (ILD) long-distance services to end-customers through
the last-mile infrastructure of local operator, billing customers
directly. In addition to traditional long-distance services,
Rostelecom offers its customers a growing range of intelligent and
multimedia network services. 

Rostelecom has a strong position in international telecom
segments. It offers traffic transit services to international operators
and can provide international leased line services for any level
of capacity. Rostelecom has established direct international
connections with more than 100 operators in 72 countries,
participates in 30 international cable systems and cooperates
with 400 international operators and companies outside of Russia.
As the leading telecommunications operator of the Russian
Federation, Rostelecom belongs to a number of international
industry organizations, including the International
Telecommunication Union (ITU) and the Telecommunication
Operators Board of the Regional Commonwealth in the field of
Communications (RCC).

Rostelecom’s revenues totaled RUR 37,318 million in 2004.
Domestic long-distance services contributed 46% of Rostelecom
revenues. Outgoing international long-distance accounted for 24%,
and payments from international operators for the incoming
international traffic accounted for 11%.  The remaining 19% of
2004 revenues is attributable to leased line services, TV and radio
broadcasting.

Svyazinvest, the state-controlled holding company, is Rostelecom’s
majority shareholder, with ownership of 51% of ordinary (voting)
shares.  Rostelecom’s free float is comprised of the remaining 49%
of the ordinary shares and 100% of the Company’s preferred
shares. Since 1998, Rostelecom’s American Depositary Receipts
(ADRs) have been listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
ticker symbol ROS.  As of today, Rostelecom’s securities are traded
on major Russian and international markets, including RTS, MICEX
as well as the New York, London and Frankfurt stock exchanges.

KEY FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Million minutes 2004 2003 % change YoY

Domestic long-distance traffic 9,094.1 8,219.6 10.6%

International outgoing long-distance traffic 1,540.7 1,323.4 16.4%

International incoming long-distance traffic 1,449.1 1,207.4 20.0%

RUR million1 2004 20032 % change YoY

Revenue 37,318.0 31,267.0 19.4%

Revenue excluding effect of new settlement system3 31,393.9 28,823.2 8.9%

OIBDA4 12,720.0 11,651.0 9.2%

OIBDA margin, % 34.1% 37.3%

Operating income 5,005.0 2,185.0 129.1%

Operating margin, % 13.4% 7.0%

Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax5 - (3,109.0) n/a

Net profit 4,298.0 398.0 979.9%

Net margin, % 11.5% 1.3% n/a

Dividends 

On preferred shares 722.1 789.9 –8.6%

On ordinary shares 1,063.4 639.9 66.2%

Corporate debt 1,884.0 3,573.0 –47.3%
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1  This annual report contains financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). In order to ensure comparability of Rostelecom’s performance to peer companies, all absolute figures in the profit
and loss statements and the balance sheets, included in the text of the annual report, are stated in Russian rubles (RUR).  

2 In 2004, the Company reviewed the bases on which certain revenues from local operators and related expenses were
recognized and determined that not all conditions necessary for the recognition of revenue and related expenses had been
met. As a result, management considered it appropriate to correct revenues and expenses and respective accounts
receivable and payable as of December 31, 2003 and the two years then ended as follows.

3 Rostelecom financial results for the full year ended December 31, 2004 take into account the introduction of the new
settlement system for domestic long-distance traffic transit in August 2003.  In order to ensure comparability this annual report
also contains comparable figures for the full year ended December 31, 2004 in accordance with the old settlement system.  

4 OIBDA is a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure, which the Company defines as operating income before depreciation,
amortization and loss on disposal of PP&E.  We believe that OIBDA provides useful information to investors because it is an
indicator of the strength and performance of our business operations, including our ability to finance capital expenditures,
acquisitions and other investments and our ability to incur and service debt.  OIBDA should not be considered in isolation
as an alternative to net income, operating income or any other measure of performance under U.S. GAAP.

5 According to IFRS No. 5, adopted by the Company in 2003, the results of discontinued operations are to be reported
separately in the profit and loss statements, including respective amounts for prior periods presented.  Therefore results of
RTC-Leasing and its subsidiaries, which represent leasing, and banking & investing segments are shown separately as “Net
loss from discontinued operations, net of tax”.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In presenting Rostelecom’s 2004 annual report, I am pleased to
note the Company’s success in achieving its key objectives for the
year – to deliver strong revenue growth and enhanced business
efficiency.

The Russian telecommunications industry experienced continued
robust growth in 2004, driven by increased demand for telecom
services and continuous upgrading of the country’s technological
infrastructure. Rostelecom strongly benefited from these trends,
reinforcing its leadership as Russia’s national long-distance
operator, improving its competitiveness and delivering positive
financial and operational results. 

Over the past few years, Rostelecom’s management has achieved
major progress in positioning the Company for sustained leadership
of the Russian telecommunications market and readying it for
success in a changing market environment. Significant actions were
undertaken to restructure the business, build competitive
advantages, and develop and organize Rostelecom’s network –
everything necessary to ensure the strength of the Company’s
platform for supporting further dynamic growth.

Rostelecom enjoys a strong operational foundation, giving the
Company great long-term potential.  I am confident that
Rostelecom’s management and employees will meet the challenge
of maintaining and strengthening the Company’s market position
with great success. 

Valery Yashin
Chairman of the Board, Rostelecom

алло!
is how you answer the phone
in Russian
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GENERAL DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE

2004 was a positive year for Rostelecom, as we drove increases
in revenues and traffic volume while taking measures to further
strengthen competitive positions and enhance efficiency.
In presenting the Company’s results for 2004, I am pleased to
review the year’s key achievements.

During the year, Rostelecom strengthened its position in the
regional and international operators’ markets, continuing to focus
on the growth of new services. Thanks to optimization of business
processes and tight cost control, the Company maintained high
levels of profitability and a strong financial position. 

A major focus of our management team was to reinforce
Rostelecom’s competitive advantages and growth opportunities
stemming from the Company’s unique network infrastructure.
Key projects included expansion of network capacity,
modernization of existing lines, construction of new links and
infrastructure to support the launch of new services. In 2004,
Rostelecom completed the modernization of its trunk lines from
Moscow to Khabarovsk and from Moscow to Novorossiysk,
delivering a fourfold increase in throughput capacity on these lines
– one of the most important investments for our future growth.

Other major priorities for Rostelecom in 2004 were to improve
business efficiency and strengthen the Company’s financial
position. Significant measures were undertaken to optimize the
organizational structure, improve business processes and dispose
of non-core and underperforming assets. Management’s efforts to
strengthen the Company’s financial position received widespread
recognition, and at the beginning of 2005, Standard & Poor’s
upgraded Rostelecom’s long-term credit rating to “B+” from “B”
with a stable outlook.

In 2005, we will take actions to ensure Rostelecom’s successful
development in the new market environment while further
increasing our competitive drive. Our key objectives are to maintain
and strengthen Rostelecom’s market position, further expand and
modernize the Company’s trunk network, and develop new services
and enter new markets, while at the same time driving further
improvements in operational efficiency.

Dmitry Yerokhin
General Director, Rostelecom

is how you answer
the phone in Greek
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STRONG MACROECONOMIC
ENVIRONMENT SUPPORTS POSITIVE
OUTLOOK FOR RUSSIAN
TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY

The Russian telecommunications market grew by an impressive 38%
in 2004, representing RUR 506 billion1 in revenues driven primarily by
a robust increase in demand for telecommunications services. Strong
revenue growth was accompanied by expansion and modernization
of the industry’s infrastructure.

Russia’s strong economic growth is a driving force behind the
development of the telecommunications industry.   GDP growth
exceeded 7.0% in 2003 and 2004.  In 2004, domestic consumption
growth and increased export volumes supported swift economic
expansion.  Real disposable income increased by 8.2% and
consumer spending by 12.1% with a growing proportion of
the consumer basket being allocated to services including
telecommunications.  Improved macroeconomic fundamentals
were just another reflection of the robust Russian economy in 2004.
The federal budget surplus amounted to 4.1% of GDP, federal
external debt decreased by 7.7% to USD 110.5 billion, while the
international currency reserves of the Central Bank of Russia
increased by USD 47.6 billion to USD 124.5 billion as of early 2005.

Russia’s strong macroeconomic fundamentals have gained increased
recognition in international markets. In January 2005, Standard &
Poor’s awarded Russia an investment grade rating on its senior
sovereign debt (BBB- with a stable outlook), specifically highlighting
crucial improvements in the government’s debt levels and external
liquidity, as well as good growth prospects in the medium-term.
Following Moody’s and Fitch’s upgrade of Russia to investment
grade status in late 2003 and 2004 respectively, Russia is now an
investment grade country.

The favorable current macroeconomic situation is expected to
stimulate further strong growth in Russia. According to IMF
estimates, Russia’s GDP will grow at 6.0% in 2005 and 5.5% in 2006.
The telecommunications industry is expected to significantly
contribute to this growth based on its continual rapid development. 

Due to continued increases in disposable incomes and consumer
spending, the mobile sector is the fastest growing segment of the
Russian telecommunications industry.  However, flourishing business
activity - particularly in the Russian regions - has resulted in growing
demand by corporations for both traditional telephony and value-
added services offered by fixed-line operators. The 29% fixed-line
and 51% mobile penetration underscore the strong growth of
the telecommunications sector going forward. The Russian
telecommunications market is expected to grow by 30% in 2005,
generating RUR 650 billion1 in revenues, which is likely to be the
highest growth of any Russian industry sector.

is how you answer
the phone in Arabic

1 According to the Ministry of Information Technologies and Communications 
of the Russian Federation
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2005 – Confidence in Our Future

The key objective of Rostelecom’s management for 2005 is to
ensure the Company’s future success in the new market
environment by further strengthening productivity and increasing
its competitive position.

Retaining and strengthening competitive positions

■ Further growth in traffic and revenue from regional operators 
■ Strengthening Rostelecom’s competitive position in Moscow
■ Retaining our leadership in the international market
■ Further trunk network modernization and expansion

Launch and promotion of new services and entry into new
markets 

■ Active promotion of Europe-Asia traffic transit services
■ Promotion and launches of new intelligent network services
■ Expansion of the Company’s multi-service network

Further operational efficiency enhancements

■ Disposal of underperforming and non-core assets
■ Streamlining of business processes and organizational structure 
■ Continued headcount reduction

2004 MILESTONES AND GOALS FOR 2005

2004 – Strong Growth

Rostelecom’s positive 2004 operating and financial performance
reflects the management team’s efforts to increase revenues and
efficiency levels while reaping the long-term benefits of corporate
restructuring. In 2004, Rostelecom substantially strengthened its
competitive positions in the regional and international markets, and
continued actively to promote new services. Rostelecom succeeded
in retaining high profitability and strengthened its financial position
through further business process optimization and rigorous cost
control.

Strengthening competitive positions in key markets

■ Healthy traffic and revenue growth in the regional market:
total DLD and outgoing ILD traffic volume from Russian operators
increased by 13.9%. Excluding the effect of the new settlement
system, revenue from Russian operators grew 19.7%.

■ Further market share gains in the international market: incoming
international traffic increased 20.0%, revenue from international
operators grew 4.4%.

■ Stable traffic and revenue dynamics from Moscow subscribers:
traffic volume retained, revenue increased by 1.2%.

■ Competitive position in value-added services strengthened:
revenue from intelligent network services increased threefold.

Improved financial performance

■ Consolidated revenue excluding the effect of the new settlement
system increased 8.9% to RUR 31,394 million.

■ OIBDA grew by 9.2%.
■ Balance sheet strengthened: shareholders’ equity increased

6.0%, corporate debt decreased 47.3%.
■ Rostelecom’s long-term credit rating was upgraded by Standard

& Poor’s from “B” to “B+” with stable outlook.

Network modernization and expansion 

■ The Company completed the modernization of its Moscow-
Khabarovsk and Moscow-Novorossiysk trunk lines using DWDM
equipment. The modernized lines measure 15,300 kilometers in
total. The throughput capacity of these trunk lines was increased
fourfold. 
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BEING COMPETITIVE TODAY
AND TOMORROW

In light of the forthcoming liberalization of the Russian
telecommunications market, the key objective of Rostelecom’s
management is to ensure the Company’s future success in the new
competitive environment. Rostelecom has already been competing
in several market segments for a long time and has prepared for
eventual liberalization through a process of restructuring and
continuous productivity improvement over the past several years.
Today, Rostelecom’s market presence and experience, its
technologically advanced nationwide infrastructure, its efficiency
focus and its financial strength give the Company tremendous
advantages for seizing new opportunities, benefiting from the growth
of free and fair markets.

To discuss Rostelecom’s prospects in the liberalized marketplace
and review management’s efforts to increase the Company’s
competitiveness in 2004, we are pleased to present this special
section, Being Competitive Today and Tomorrow, as part of this
year’s annual report.

is how you answer 
the phone in Italian
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Positive development of telecom industry reform  

2005 has signaled new developments in the reform of the Russian
telecommunications industry critical to fostering an advanced,
market-oriented telecom sector to support the country’s economic
growth. At the beginning of 2004, the new Federal
Telecommunications Law ushered in a period of industry reform,
while a new DLD settlement system launched by Rostelecom in
2003 was successfully implemented, enhancing the transparency
and precision of the settlements between operators and thus
improving the overall efficiency of the market. During 2004, the
Ministry of Information Technologies and Communications prepared
the regulatory groundwork for telecom market liberalization, and in
early 2005 the Government of the Russian Federation confirmed
new licensing and interconnection rules. The forthcoming adoption
of new regulations will signal the actual beginning of the
liberalization of the Russian long-distance market. 

New market model provides opportunities for Rostelecom

Importantly for Rostelecom, while long-distance liberalization will
introduce competition in every region of Russia, it will also open
up new opportunities for the Company and enable it to enter new
markets. The general principle of liberalization is to enable
customers to choose their long-distance operator, while permitting
operators to market their services directly to customers.
Rostelecom will thus gain genuine direct access to corporate and
residential end-users across Russia for the first time. 

Our view is that everyone wins from the proposed
demonopolization. Users will gain the ability to choose their long-
distance provider, driving improvements in the quality of services
and more flexible tariff packages. The Russian economy will benefit
from effective regulatory mechanisms that promote investment in
telecommunications infrastructure in all regions. And market
participants themselves will benefit from growth opportunities
fostered by free and fair competition.

Rostelecom ready for success in competitive markets   

In order to prepare for market liberalization, Rostelecom’s strategic
priorities for the past several years have been to strengthen the
Company’s efficiency, competitiveness and growth:

■ Efficiency enhancement, including corporate restructuring and
divestment of non-core and underperforming assets, as well as
optimization of the organizational structure and headcount
reduction

■ Strengthened position in the regional, Moscow and incoming ILD
markets 

■ Active cooperation with Russian and international operators
■ Network modernization and expansion 
■ Preparations to enter Europe-Asia transit market 
■ Launch of new value-added services and products 

Today, Rostelecom’s competitive advantages are underpinned by:

■ Strong presence in the regional markets, experience in already
competitive markets and a recognized commitment to best
industry practices 

■ Unique scale of our technologically advanced network, offering
the highest levels of service quality and reliability

■ A full range of technological resources to offer nationwide
telecommunications services 

■ High efficiency levels that enable us to offer competitive tariffs on
a profitable basis 

■ A strong financial position that gives us added flexibility for
maneuvering in a dynamic competitive environment 

Rostelecom’s strong operational and financial performance in 2004
is a result of the Company’s success in increasing competitiveness
and efficiency and also reflects the positive impact of corporate
restructuring in previous years. Our goal in 2005 is to further
strengthen the Company’s competitive position while enhancing
efficiency. Going forward, Rostelecom’s unique competitive
advantages and our strategy to seize opportunities in the Russian
telecommunications sector will be the main drivers of our growth.  
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Rostelecom owns and
operates an extensive

high-capacity trunk network,
interconnecting all Russian
operators’ networks into a single
national telecommunications
infrastructure. As a backbone
operator, the Company actively
works with all Russian operators
and has an interest in enhancing
mutual beneficial cooperation.
Rostelecom’s main services to
Russian operators are domestic
and outgoing international long-
distance traffic transit as well as
leased line services. Building on
our partnership with Russian
operators, we are expanding this
range of services, developing our
technological infrastructure and
optimizing our tariff policy to
meet one of our major objectives
– the strengthening of
Rostelecom’s position in the
regional market. 

Over the past few years,
Rostelecom has been
successfully driving revenue
growth from Russian operators
and increasing regional DLD and
ILD traffic volumes. An important
milestone in promoting efficient
cooperation with regional
operators was the introduction of
the new settlement system for
DLD traffic transit in 2003, which
enhanced the transparency of
settlements and provided a
strong basis for the rational
economic and market-based
development of the industry.
Rostelecom has introduced
significantly more effective tariff
policies for DLD and ILD services
in the regions over of the last
several years. And in 2004,
Rostelecom rebalanced ILD tariffs
for the subscribers of Russia’s
seven super-regional telecom

operators. In addition, active
cooperation with alternative
operators and flexible pricing
have enabled the Company to
attract additional traffic volumes,
while the investments we are
making in network expansion
position the Company to increase
its revenues from leased line
services.

Thanks to successful marketing
efforts, Rostelecom has steadily
built its leadership in the Russian
operators’ market.  Our strong
regional market presence thus
positions Rostelecom to deliver a
steady increase in traffic and
revenues.

STRONG MARKET PRESENCE

is how you answer 
the phone in Armenian

Rostelecom occupies a unique position in Russia’s regional
telecommunications market. The Company acts as a “carriers’

carrier”, providing a full range of backbone services to local operators in
every region of Russia. What steps is the Company taking to maintain its
leadership in the regional inter-operator’s market and to develop its
growth opportunities with regard to telecom operators? 

?

!
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Leased Line Services

Rostelecom is one of Russia’s major providers of both long-
distance and international leased line services. 2004 revenues from
leased line services grew 67.6% year on year to RUR 4,637.7
million. Rostelecom’s strong position in the leased line market is
underpinned by the unique scale and capacity of its nationwide
network and the Company’s high quality of service.

To drive sales of leased line services, the Company continued to
expand its flexible multiplexers network. In 2004, the third line of
this network was commissioning covering 30 Russian cities.
Overall, Rostelecom’s leased line services are now available in more
than 300 cities.

In 2004, DLD traffic from Russian operators
rose 12.3% to 7,762.6 million minutes. Full
year 2004 revenues from Russian operators
for DLD traffic transit surged by 54.7% year-
on-year to RUR 13,411.0 million. 

Domestic and Outgoing International Long-Distance Traffic
Transit Services to Russian Operators 

The Company continued to optimize its tariff policy in 2004 to
enhance the competitiveness of domestic and international
long-distance services to Russian operators, with the goal of
increasing traffic and revenues in the regional market. In 2004, ILD
tariffs for subscribers of super-regional companies were rebalanced
to promote greater market efficiency. These changes were made
possible thanks to Rostelecom’s active cooperation with international
operators to optimize settlement rates. Tariff rebalancing eliminated
the disparities between Rostelecom’s tariffs for businesses
and residential customers and optimized workday and weekend
tariffs. In addition, Rostelecom continued to develop and market
more flexible tariff conditions for alternative operators.

2004 revenues from Russian operators for DLD and ILD traffic transit
totaled RUR 19,571.0 million, a year-on-year increase of 41.4%.
Excluding the effect of the new settlement system for DLD traffic
transit, revenues grew by 19.7%. 

2004 revenues from Russian operators for DLD traffic transit surged
by 54.7% year-on-year to RUR 13,411.0 million. Excluding the effect
of the new settlement system, revenues increased 20.3% on the
back of growth in demand for DLD telecommunication services as
well as changes in DLD traffic mix. DLD traffic from Russian
operators rose 12.3% to 7,762.6 million minutes.

Outgoing ILD traffic from Russian operators grew 25.1% to 1,232.9
million minutes in 2004, primarily due to a doubling of traffic volume
carried to Rostelecom’s network by alternative operators.
2004 revenues from Russian operators for ILD traffic transit amounted
to RUR 6,160.0 million, an increase of 19.1% year-on-year.  Overall
outgoing ILD market growth and ILD tariff rebalancing for subscribers
of super-regional telecom operators contributed to the positive
revenue dynamics, both from alternative and regional operators.
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2004 revenues from leased line services rose 67.6% year on year
to a total of RUR 4,637.7 million.
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Rostelecom has already
been operating in a

competitive environment for a
long time. Historically, the most
intensely competitive segments
for the Company have been two
of the largest: the Moscow
market and the international
operators’ market. Over a
number of years, Rostelecom has
strengthened its competitive
position in these markets by
sharpening its commercial focus.

Rostelecom has successfully
reversed the previous revenue
decline and stabilized traffic
dynamics in Moscow. In 2003,
our marketing efforts and the
introduction of flexible new tariff
policies and discounts in
Moscow were instrumental to
re-starting top-line growth and
increasing Rostelecom’s share of
the Moscow corporate market.
In 2004, we further reinforced our
position amid fierce competition,
with efficiency enhancements,
improved service quality and new
product launches contributing to
slightly higher revenues and a
stable traffic volume.

In the incoming international
market, the Company’s
successful cooperation with
international operators and
optimization of settlement rates
resulted in strong growth of
incoming international traffic
volumes and further market share
gains in 2004. 

Rostelecom currently benefits from its monopoly in the Russian
long-distance and international traffic transit market and mainly

functions as a wholesale operator. Looking forward to the
liberalization of the Russian telecommunications sector, is
Rostelecom ready for success in competitive markets – and how is
the Company positioned for providing services directly to end-user
customers? 

OPERATING SUCCESSFULLY IN COMPETITIVE MARKETS 

?

!

The Moscow Market 

In the Moscow market, Rostelecom’s main focus in 2004 was to
strengthen its competitive position by enhancing efficiency and
improving the quality of services to end-customers. 

■ The customer care function was reorganized with the creation of
separate units responsible for directory assistance and reference
services and for customer-facing services for subscribers. 

■ Rostelecom’s Intercity and International Telephone (MMT) branch
readied its state-of-the-art call-center with a single access
number, standardizing the customer service experience and
optimizing business procedures.

■ Rostelecom also expanded its Moscow network of points of
payment for long-distance and international calls – Moscow
subscribers can now pay their bills for domestic and international
long-distance services at almost 1,000 locations.

To expand its customer offering and increase usage, Rostelecom
launched its Karta Svyazy prepaid card in Moscow at the beginning
of 2004. Karta Svvazy is a unique, universal prepaid card that can
be used for domestic long-distance and international calls, Internet
access as well as a wide range of inquiry and reference services. In
addition, Karta Svyazy can be used as a convenient form of bill
payment for Rostelecom DLD and ILD services.

Throughout the year, Rostelecom also actively promoted a number
of intelligent network services.  
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2004 DLD and ILD revenues from Moscow subscribers
increased by 1.2% year on year.  DLD and ILD traffic from
Moscow subscribers decreased by 0.2% in 2004.



A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 0 423R O S T E L E C O M22

International Operators’ Market

Incoming ILD traffic grew by an impressive 20.0% in 2004, driven
by successful cooperation with international operators and
underpinned by optimization of settlement rates.  This impressive
growth enabled the Company to stabilize its revenues from
international operators for traffic termination. Rostelecom increased
its share of incoming international traffic, underscoring the strength
of the Company’s market position.
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The rapid growth of new
telecommunications

technologies has had a profound
effect on telecom markets all
over the world. In Russia we’ve
begun to see a surge in customer
demand for advanced, high-
quality and reliable new services
that meet the latest international
standards. Our clear aim is to be
at the forefront of changing
consumer preferences and to
secure a strong and durable
market position in these
developing business areas.

Rostelecom’s value-added
service (VAS) offering is a key
element of the Company’s
strategy for leadership,
competitiveness and growth in
changing markets.  The growing
market for intelligent network
services (INS) - mainly aimed at
Russian corporate customers -
has been a particular focus of
our efforts. In 2004, the
Company attained a threefold
increase in revenue from
intelligent and multimedia
network services.  Rostelecom
offers a number of services
developed on the back of its
intelligent platform, including
Televoting, Freephone and the
Karta Svyazy prepaid card.  In
addition we provide our
customers with multimedia
services. With the Russian VAS
market still in its infancy but
showing significant growth
potential, in 2005 we expect
continued strong take-up from
customers and a further boost
to our revenues and market
position.

In 2004, Rostelecom also
continued its preparations for
entering the Europe-Asia transit
(TEA) market. Rostelecom enjoys
unique technological advantages
for seizing a substantial share of
Europe-Asia traffic transmission

thanks to the modernization of its
trunk lines, completed in 2004,
and further expansion of capacity
on the network to Asian
countries.

Strengthening our position in new
growth markets is thus one of the
major goals for Rostelecom.
Our priorities for 2005 are to
expand the range of intelligent
network services for Russian
corporate clients, and to build
on our successful cooperation
with international operators to
increase our volumes of Europe-
Asia transit services and further
enhance our growth prospects.

NEW MARKETS UNDERPIN FUTURE GROWTH

Rostelecom is positioned for growth in new markets, building on
its core offering of domestic and international long-distance

services to subscribers and wholesale traffic transit services. Changing
customer needs and the infusion of global business practices are
spurring Russia’s demand for value-added telecom services. With the
most extensive telecoms infrastructure in Russia, Rostelecom has a
strong technological platform for developing and marketing advanced
new services and products. What efforts is the Company undertaking to
build leadership and capitalize on opportunities in new market
segments to support steady long-term growth?

?

!

In 2004 incoming ILD traffic volume grew by 20.0% year on year
to 1,449.1 million minutes. Revenues from international operators
for the termination of incoming ILD traffic increased by 4.4% year
on year to RUR 4,041.0 million.
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Intelligent and Multimedia Network Services  

The Company owns and operates a high capacity intelligent network
for the provision of value-added telecom services. By leveraging its
intelligent network platform – a hardware and software complex
connected to the Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN) –
Rostelecom can offer a growing range of value-added services in
every region of Russia. Thanks to its state-of-the-art technical
infrastructure, the Company ensures competitive pricing, high-quality
connections as well as detailed analysis of call handling information
to assist customers in effectively managing their use of value-added
services.

Rostelecom’s intelligent and multimedia network services address the
needs of both corporate clients and residential subscribers. As of
today, the services with the highest levels of demand include:

■ “Freephone (800-200)” and “International Freephone” services
– Enable businesses to lease a special single access number for

domestic or international toll-free calling.  The main users of this
service are companies with a sizable nationwide client base who
need to provide round-the-clock customer support, hot-lines, etc.     

■ “Televoting (803-200)” services – Media outlets, research firms
and other businesses can obtain a single intelligent access number
that enables them to organize interactive events with a high volume
of calls, including public opinion polls, contests, telemarathons,
marketing and statistical research, etc.                

■ “Premium Rate (809-200)” services – Allow a content-provider to
offer a wide range of paid services (inquiry and reference, advice
lines, prepaid order services, etc.)       

■ Videoconferencing services – Facilitate video, voice and/or
graphic information exchange between parties in multiple locations.
The service is in great demand from companies with activities and
partners in multiple regions, for conducting business discussions,
intra-company meetings, distance-learning, remote job interviews,
etc.   

■ Services via Rostelecom’s Karta Svyazy – A universal prepaid
card, which can be used for domestic and international long-
distance calls, Internet access as well as a wide range of inquiry and
reference services.   

Throughout 2004, Rostelecom actively promoted its intelligent
network and multimedia offering while developing and launching new
offerings such as Karta Svyazy and Premium Rate numbers.
The Company’s value-added service strategy has demonstrated
promising results.  Revenues from intelligent network services surged
to RUR 142.2 million in 2004, a nearly threefold increase compared
to the prior year.

In 2005, Rostelecom plans to enhance its ongoing promotions and
expand the range of value-added services that leverage the
Company’s intelligent network infrastructure, including the launch of
“Universal Access Number (804-200)” services.

In 2004 Rostelecom revenues from INS services totaled
RUR 142.2 million, a 195% increase year on year.
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is how you answer
the phone in Chinese

Europe-Asia Transit Market 

In 2005, Rostelecom plans to begin aggressive promotion of its
Europe-Asia transit (TEA) services to operators and companies in
international markets. 

With expansion of economic ties between the two regions, Europe-
Asia traffic continues to grow rapidly. Rostelecom has a number of
unique geographic and commercial advantages to support its goal to
become a strong player in the Europe-Asia transit market.
Rostelecom’s high-technology terrestrial countrywide network gives
international telecom companies the shortest and most reliable route
for traffic transmission between the two continents.

In preparation for its successful entry into the Europe-Asia transit
market, Rostelecom in 2004 completed the modernization of trunk
lines extending 15,300 kilometers from Moscow to Khabarovsk and
from Moscow to Novorossiysk using DWDM equipment. This project
resulted in a fourfold increase in throughput capacity on this part of
Rostelecom’s network. In 2004, Rostelecom also initiated work to
expand capacity on its network to the Chinese border and into China
itself with the construction of additional access lines.

Rostelecom has already extended its network westward with
existing points of presence in London, Stockholm and Frankfurt.
The modernization and expansion of capacity on Rostelecom’s
trunk network to Asian countries thus has given it a unique
transcontinental technical infrastructure, positioning the Company
to attract a substantial share of current and future Europe-Asia traffic
transmission. 
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Nationwide Digital Trunk Network Underpins the Company’s
Competitive Position

Rostelecom’s extensive trunk network is a unique competitive
advantage, enabling the Company to offer nationwide
telecommunications services. Rostelecom owns and operates a
high-capacity fiber-optic network stretching nearly 200,000
kilometers throughout Russia – from Europe to the Pacific and from
Central Asia to the Arctic Circle. As of the end of 2004, the
digitalization rate was 93% in channel-kilometers, with switching
capacity 100% digitalized.

Rostelecom has all technological capabilities already in place to
provide domestic and international long-distance services in every
region of the Russian Federation. Scale, efficiency and reliability
advantages have reinforced the Company’s leadership in the
Russian telecom market and made Rostelecom an attractive
commercial partner for both regional and international operators.

Investing in the Company’s Competitive Edge

The technical enhancement of Rostelecom’s infrastructure gives the
Company an important advantage for success in competitive
markets. Over the past few years, Rostelecom has consistently
invested in the technological development and reliability of its trunk
network.

Among the capital expenditure priorities are projects to modernize
and expand capacity on the network to ensure that there is enough
capacity to meet the rapid growth of DLD and ILD traffic – and to
expand in new markets such as Europe-Asia transit.

Rostelecom’s investments in new lines to both domestic and
international destinations aim to expand the Company’s presence
and strengthen its position in the most attractive markets. In addition,
Rostelecom is focusing on multi-service network modernization that
will enable the Company to expand its range of services while raising
quality levels.

The overall goal of Rostelecom’s capital expenditure program is to
boost the growth of telecommunications services to drive revenue
growth in competitive market conditions.

The Company’s  total capital expenditures in 2004 amounted
to USD 156 million, and investments are projected to increase
to approximately USD 230 million in 2005.

Over the past few years,
Rostelecom has significantly

upgraded the technological focus
of the business.  As a result, the
Company has the most extensive
and sophisticated telecoms
infrastructure in Russia.
Rostelecom’s trunk network is a
unique asset giving us powerful
competitive advantages.
The advanced technological level
and high capacity of our network
enable the Company to offer a
wide range of services to other
operators, businesses and
residential customers, supporting
our leadership in both Russian and
international markets. 

In light of the forthcoming
liberalization of the Russian
telecommunications market,
Rostelecom is focusing on
technology-driven growth
opportunities. The Company’s
capital expenditure program is
aimed at providing customers with
a full range of telecom services
addressing today’s demand levels
and anticipating the future
development of the market.
Rostelecom is modernizing its
existing lines using advanced
technologies, extending its network
and developing infrastructure to
support the launch of new services.
Among the most important
investment projects of 2004 is the
completion of the modernization of
Rostelecom’s trunk lines from
Moscow to Khabarovsk and from
Moscow to Novorossiysk, which
resulted in a fourfold increase in
capacity on these lines. 

A major goal of our investment
program for 2005 is further network
expansion to ensure a robust
technological basis for entering
new markets and enhance the
Company’s competitive advantages
stemming from a wider range of
services of higher quality and
reliability.

UNIQUE NATIONWIDE TRUNK NETWORK UNDERPINS
ROSTELECOM’S COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

Rostelecom has a technologically advanced nationwide trunk
network, and for the past few years has actively invested in

further development of its infrastructure. How important is the
Company’s technological foundation in light of future liberalization of
the Russian telecommunications market? And how does Rostelecom’s
investment program facilitate the strengthening of the Company’s
competitive position?

?

!
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2005 – Investing in Rostelecom’s network

■ Modernization of existing trunk lines, including: 
● Modernization of the Moscow–St. Petersburg fiber-optic line to

enhance the  throughput capacity on the Company’s trunk
network and increase the reliability of Rostelecom’s traffic transit
services. 

● Network modernization from Kingisepp to Kotka for development
of the Russia–Finland telecommunications system. 

● Modernization of fiber-optic line between Novoroshdestvenskaya,
Budennovsk and Krasnodar to expand throughput capacity on the
Moscow-Novorossiysk trunk line and set up its ring backup
system.

■ Further modernization and expansion of secondary network
Expansion of existing Automatic Switching Nodes, International
Switching Centers and Exchanges, including Moscow International
Switching Center, to grow the volume of ILD services to operators
and subscribers in Moscow. 

■ Development of flexible multiplexers network to expand the
range of leased line services. 

■ Construction of new fiber-optic lines to multiple destinations
Construction of high-speed fiber-optic trunk lines with access to
new international destinations, construction of a backup system
and extensions linking large Russian cities to Rostelecom’s
network.

■ Further development of multi-service network to upgrade
intelligent network services and prepare for the launch of new
services.

■ Construction of VoIP network to strengthen the Company’s
position in the VoIP market.
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2004 Key Investment Projects 

■ Construction of fiber-optic line connecting Kaliningrad,
Gvardeysk and Sovetsk to Russia’s digital trunk network
In the beginning of 2004, the Company launched a new fiber-optic
line between Kaliningrad, Gvardeysk and Sovetsk with access to
the Russian digital trunk network, with the commissioning of an
international switching center in Kaliningrad. Implementation of this
project enabled Rostelecom to digitalize Kaliningrad’s trunk
network and to ensure high quality telecom connections between
this region and the rest of Russia.

■ Modernization of Moscow-Novorossiysk and Moscow-
Khabarovsk fiber-optic lines 
In September 2004, the Company completed the modernization of
its Moscow-Novorossiysk and Moscow-Khabarovsk (from
Novosibirsk to Khabarovsk) trunk lines using DWDM equipment.
These projects were aimed at expanding the throughput capacity
of Rostelecom’s main lines for domestic and international traffic
transmission, including international transit. The 15,300 km fiber-
optic upgrade results in a fourfold increase in throughput capacity. 

■ Modernization of access to China 
To enhance the throughput capacity on its trunk network for
transmission of international traffic to Asian countries, in 2004
Rostelecom initiated a project to expand throughput capacity for
access to China. In July 2004, the Company signed an agreement
with China Telecom on the construction of a cable system between
Russia and China, with planned throughput capacity of 2.5Gbps,
to be further expanded up to 300 Gbps. This project contributes
Rostelecom’s aims for strengthening its position in the Europe-Asia
transit market.

■ Reconstruction of Tyumen-Surgut line
The expansion of throughput capacity on the digital radio-relay line
from Tyumen to Surgut enabled the Company to ensure high
quality and reliability of telecom connections for subscribers in
the Tyumen region as well as Khanty-Mansi and Yamalo-Nenets
Autonomous Districts.

■ Construction of fiber-optic line from Ekaterinburg to Perm
The construction of this line, providing additional access to the
Perm and Ekaterinburg digital Automatic Trunk Exchanges – and
the  modernization of the Apastovo-Shelkun trunk line using
DWDM equipment – enabled the Company to establish a network
ring structure in the Urals region and increase network reliability. 

■ Modernization and expansion of Rostelecom’s secondary
network
The Company continued to expand its secondary network in 2004.
Rostelecom’s Automatic Trunk Exchanges were expanded by
38,000 channels. The Company also modernized its Automatic
Switching Nodes and International Switching Centers and
Exchanges, which considerably increased their capacity. 

■ Development of the Company’s flexible multiplexers network
In order to increase sales of leased line services, in 2004 the
Company continued to develop its network of modern flexible
multiplexers. A third line was completed, linking 30 more Russian
cities and towns.

Rostelecom’s capital expenditures amounted to USD 156 million
in 2004 – an increase of 44% year on year.
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Organizational Structure Improvements and
Headcount Optimization

In 2004, Rostelecom continued to optimize its organizational
structure to enhance management efficiency and reduce costs.
Some of the initiatives undertaken included consolidation of
regional centers and the creation of joint departments to enable the
Company to optimize its administrative and managerial headcount. 

Initiatives were also undertaken to identify areas for additional
headcount reduction in Rostelecom’s regional branches.

14,000

12,000

10,000

6,000

8,000

4,000

2,000

0

4,
08

5

11
,5

15

99 00 01 02 03 04

3,
01

7

Headcount and average salary

RUR

40,000

35,000

25,000

15,000

5,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

0

Employees

36
,7

15

36
,5

95

34
,0

43

Average salary

Headcount

30
,5

96

26
,7

42

25
,2

78

6,
37

8

8,
28

9

4,
66

7

Enhancing operational
efficiency is one of

Rostelecom management’s key
objectives. We have been making
steady efficiency gains for
several years now, and the need
for maximizing efficiency is
greater than ever as we prepare
for life in competitive markets.  

Particular focus is being given to
optimizing business processes,
organizational structure and
headcount, as well as to cutting
costs from underperforming
assets. These steps have
resulted in significant quality
improvements that will have a
long-term positive impact on the
Company. 

In 2004, Rostelecom continued
to decommission analogue lines,
reduced headcount by 5.5%, and
effected strict cost controls.
Our 2004 operating and financial
performance also reflects the
positive impact of corporate
restructuring. This enabled us to
retain a high level of profitability.
Excluding the effect of the new
settlement system, the 2004 full
year OIBDA margin amounted
to 40.5%. During the past year,
Rostelecom also further
optimized its business portfolio
and organizational structure and
began the implementation of a
unified billing system.

Increasing operational efficiency
remains one of Rostelecom’s
major priorities in 2005. A major
task in the coming year will be
the launch of a new cost cutting
program involving further
organizational streamlining and
headcount optimization, as well
as divestments of non-core
and unprofitable assets. 
In 2005, the Company
also expects to introduce
a Total Quality Management
system (in accordance with 
ISO 9000-9001).

We are confident that our efforts
to enhance efficiency will give the
Company additional competitive
advantages, increasing the
quality of services and improving
Rostelecom’s operating and
financial performance in the
competitive market.

ENHANCING EFFICIENCY

In 2004, Rostelecom demonstrated positive progression in both its
operating and financial performance. The company has

implemented an active marketing strategy to ensure increases in traffic
and revenue. What else is Rostelecom doing to strengthen
performance? 

?

!

Rostelecom’s headcount was reduced by 5.5% in 2004. As of
December 31, 2004 headcount amounted to 25,278 employees.
Average salary level grew by 39% compared to 2003.
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Rostelecom’s strong
financial position

represents a fundamental
competitive advantage that
supports the Company’s stable
development as market
competition takes shape.
Rostelecom’s financial flexibility
allows it to move quickly in
response to market
developments and growth
opportunities and advance
its strategic objectives.

The positive trends in
Rostelecom’s operating and
financial performance in 2004
reflect management actions to
increase revenues and drive
greater efficiency. Excluding the
effect of the introduction of the
new settlement system,
consolidated revenues grew by
8.9% year on year, with OIBDA
increasing by 10.5%.  At the
same time, operating expenses
decreased by 1.4% on a
comparable basis, demonstrating
Rostelecom’s success in
controlling costs.

2004 also featured further
substantial improvements in
the structure of the Company’s
balance sheet. Rostelecom
ended the year with a strong
cash position and very healthy
financial ratios.  This financial
strength enables timely fulfillment
of our liabilities to creditors and
suppliers, full financing of our
investment program with
internally generated funds, and
the ability to properly incentivize
our work force. Good financial
performance has also allowed
Rostelecom to reward
shareholders by steadily raising
its dividend over the past several
years. The total 2004 dividend
amount to be paid to
shareholders will amount to
RUR 1.8 billion, an increase
of 25% over 2003.

Rostelecom’s efforts to achieve a
stronger financial position in
2004 have been recognized by
independent experts.  Standard &
Poor’s decision in February 2005
to raise Rostelecom’s credit
rating to “B+” with a stable
outlook was extremely positive
news for the Company and its
stakeholders.

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

A strong financial position is essential to the success of any
company. This is even more true in a dynamic and fast-changing

market environment. How does Rostelecom’s financial position
support the company as it enters a newly competitive market and in
its efforts to create shareholder value? 

?
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Successful Cost Control

Thanks to the Company’s efforts to enhance efficiency, revenues
and profit growth in 2004 far outstripped the rise in costs.  In 2004,
operating expenses (excluding the effect of the new settlement
system) decreased by 1.4% while consolidated revenue (excluding
the effect of the new settlement system) rose by 8.9% (compared to
2003 growth of 3.5%.) OIBDA grew 10.5% on a comparable basis,
totaling RUR 12,720.0 million, while OIBDA margin excluding the
effect of the new settlement system increased to 40.5%. 
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1 Excluding the effect of the new settlement system.

Rostelecom’s operating expenses excluding the effect of the new
settlement system amounted to RUR 26,388.9 million in 2004 -
a year-on-year decrease of 1.4%. 

Optimization of Business Processes 

To enhance Rostelecom’s operational efficiency, the Company took
the decision at the end of 2004 to establish a unified billing system
(UBS) based on Amdocs software solutions. Unifying and upgrading
the Company’s existing billing and related IT platforms will enable
Rostelecom to optimize business processes, improve transparency
and precision of settlements between operators and facilitate the
introduction of more flexible tariff policies and new services.
The UBS project will cover an analysis of existing billing systems
and related business processes, purchasing and implementation of
Amdocs Billing Suite software, data transfer from existing billing
systems and overall transition to settlements within UBS.

IBM Eastern Europe/Asia Ltd. was selected as lead implementer for
the project and an agreement was concluded towards the end of
2004. All necessary licenses for the software are also already in
place.
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Improved Revenue Dynamics and Growth of OIBDA

Rostelecom’s impressive increase in revenues for 2004 reflects the
Company’s efforts to improve top-line performance in line with the
positive development of the Russian telecommunications market.
Audited 2004 full year consolidated revenue increased by 19.4% to
RUR 37,318.0 million.  Excluding the effect of the introduction of the
new settlement system, consolidated revenues grew by 8.9% to RUR
31,393.9 million.

2004 full year OIBDA totaled RUR 12,720.0 million, a 9.2% increase
year on year. OIBDA margin amounted to 34.1%. Excluding the effect
of the new settlement system, OIBDA grew 10.5% year on year, while
OIBDA margin increased to 40.5%. 

Operating profit more than doubled compared to 2003 and amounted
to RUR 5,005.0 million, while the operating margin rose from 7.0% to
13.4%.  

The sale of the stake in RTC-Leasing in the fourth quarter of 2003
and its consequent deconsolidation had a positive impact on
Rostelecom's full year 2004 financial results. Since December 1,
2003 the Company no longer records a loss resulting from the
consolidation of RTC-Leasing and its subsidiaries.

Rotelecom’s consolidated net profit increased more than ten-fold
from RUR 398.0 million in 2003 to RUR 4,298.0 million in 2004, while
net margin rose from 1.3% to 11.5%.
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Balance Sheet Strength and Improved Credit Quality 

Over the past few years, Rostelecom has taken a number of steps
to improve its balance sheet structure, restructure its debt and
reduce credit risk, thus strengthening the Company’s financial
health and flexibility. 

The RTC-Leasing transaction enabled Rostelecom to reduce its
consolidated debt and interest expense. Additionally, in the first
quarter of 2004, Rostelecom completed the restructuring of its
lease receivables to RTC-Leasing and no longer has any leasing
obligations.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s consolidated debt totaled
RUR 1,884.0 million, a decrease of 47.3% compared to the end of
2003. 

One of the major indicators of Rostelecom’s increased financial
strength is the further growth of shareholders’ equity. In 2004,
shareholder’s equity increased 6.0% to RUR 50,838.0 million. 

Rostelecom’s strong financial position enabled the Company to
further increase dividend payments to shareholders. The total 2004
dividend payment grew by 25% over 2003 to RUR 1,785.5 million
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Rostelecom’s Credit Rating Upgraded by S&P 

In February 2005, Standard & Poor’s raised its long-term corporate
credit rating on Rostelecom from “B” to “B+” with a stable outlook.
S&P commented in its report that the upgraded rating reflected the
Company’s reduced exposure to financial risk and improved market
positions and business performance. Standard & Poor’s said the
stable outlook reflected its expectation that Rostelecom will sustain
its sound and improving capital structure and cash flow generation
in the near to medium term. Rostelecom continues to drive further
improvements in its operating performance and balance sheet
strength. S&P’s credit rating upgrade provides an added source of
support for the Company’s efforts to enhance its financial position. Rostelecom’s investment

appeal is based in part on
the Company’s high standards of
corporate governance.  As a first-
tier listed company on the major
Russian exchanges with shares
traded on the international
markets in ADR form,
Rostelecom is strongly
committed to upholding the
rights of shareholders.

We are always reviewing
practices that can make
Rostelecom a better company.
In 2004, we introduced
significant improvements in
corporate policy. Rostelecom
adopted the Corporate
Governance Code and the
Code of Ethics, and formal
guidelines were established for
dividend policies and information
disclosure. In order to enhance
the quality and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements,
the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors was created
to monitor the performance
of Rostelecom’s internal audit
function and its independent
auditor.

Rostelecom’s corporate
governance practices and
transparency have been
recognized by a number of
independent bodies for their
adherence to international best
practices. This underscores
the strength of Rostelecom’s
governance and management
systems, and undoubtedly
increases the financial markets’
confidence in the Company.
We believe that upholding the
rights of investors and pursuing
strategic goals in the interests
of shareholders is essential for
achieving success.

IMPROVED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STANDARDS

Rostelecom has been a leader in corporate governance for
Russian companies. What practices are the Company’s

management undertaking to further strengthen this commitment,
and how do Russian companies benefit from compliance with
international standards of corporate governance?

?

!
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Improved Corporate Governance Practices

In 2004, Rostelecom’s Board of Directors and management team
continued to strengthen corporate policies. Actions were
undertaken to codify the Company’s corporate governance
principles and ensure compliance with international best practices.

■ In January 2004, the Tender Committee was created, reporting
to the Management Board. Its main objective is to support the
Management Board in managing tenders for the selection of
suppliers and contractors for equipment purchases, projects and
services. The committee’s primary tasks are to determine tender
terms and conditions, consider commercial proposals submitted
by bidders, select winning bids, exercise overall control and
coordinate and supervise tender preparations and processes.

■ In April 2004, Rostelecom’s Board of Directors adopted the
Corporate Governance Code and the Code of Ethics. These aim
to further improve the Company’s practices related to conflicts of
interest, abuse of official power and use of insider information,
as well as information disclosure procedures. 

■ In November 2004, the Board of Directors approved
Rostelecom’s Information Disclosure Policy to improve internal
procedures for handling corporate information and ensuring proper
disclosure. 

■ In December 2004, the Board of Directors approved
Rostelecom’s Dividend Policy Guidelines, which determine the
procedures and terms for dividend calculation, dividend payment
and determination of shareholder eligibility to receive dividends.

■ In December 2004, the Audit Committee was created, reporting
to the Board of Directors. The Committee’s main objective is to
assist the Board of Directors in ensuring the qualifications and
independence of the Company’s independent auditor; the
performance of the Company’s internal audit function and of the
independent auditor; the quality and integrity of the Company’s
financial statements; and the Company’s compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

Top Scores in Independent Rankings

Rostelecom’s efforts to further enhance corporate governance
practices in 2004 have won international recognition from
independent professional bodies. 

■ Rostelecom’s corporate governance score affirmed by
Standard & Poor’s.  In February 2005, Standard & Poor’s
ascribed to Rostelecom a corporate governance score of “CGS-
6” on S&P’s global scale and “CGS-6.0” on the Russian country
scale. Standard & Poor’s cited Rostelecom’s transparency, the
active contribution of Rostelecom’s independent directors to the
functioning of the board as well as management’s diligence in
upholding shareholders’ rights. The Company’s improvements in
corporate governance to conform with international best
practices and requirements were also among the positive factors
cited by S&P.

■ Rostelecom ranked first among Russian companies for
transparency by S&P. In October 2004, Rostelecom was ranked
first by Standard & Poor’s in its 2004 Russian Transparency and
Disclosure Survey. The average transparency score for Russian
companies included in the study was 46%; Rostelecom’s
disclosure level was considerably higher, scoring 85%. S&P
emphasized that “the top performers follow disclosure standards
approaching the best international practices.”

■ Rostelecom named Central & Eastern Europe leader in
corporate governance by Euromoney.  In November 2004,
Rostelecom was named “The Leading Company in Central &
Eastern Europe & CIS for Corporate Governance” in an annual
survey of emerging market companies conducted by Euromoney
magazine. Euromoney acknowledged the efforts of Rostelecom’s
management to improve corporate governance standards,
enhance financial transparency and uphold investors and
shareholders’ rights.

■ Rostelecom was awarded Class A National Corporate
Governance rating by RID-Expert RA. RID-Expert RA, a
consortium of the Russian Institute of Directors and the
Expert RA Rating Agency, accorded Rostelecom its Class A 
rating in its 2004 National Rating of Corporate Governance.
Rostelecom stands out for its high corporate governance
standards, observing the requirements of Russian legislation and
to a greater degree following the recommendations of Russia’s
Code of Corporate Conduct.
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2004 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

■ Consolidated revenue for the full year 2004 increased by 19.4%
to RUR 37,318.0 million. Excluding the effect of the introduction
of the new settlement system, consolidated revenue totaled
RUR 31,393.9 million, an increase of 8.9% year-on-year.

■ Full year 2004 OIBDA amounted to RUR 12,720.0 million,
an increase of 9.2% year-on-year, OIBDA margin excluding the
effect of the new settlement system rose to 40.5%.

■ Operating expenses excluding the effect of the new settlement
system decreased by 1.4%.

■ Operating profit more than doubled compared to 2003 to
RUR 5,005.0 million.

■ 2004 FY net profit increased to RUR 4,298.0 million compared
to RUR 398.0 million in 2003, while net margin rose to 11.5%.

Revenue

Consolidated revenue for the full year 2004 increased by 19.4% to
RUR 37,318.0 million.  Excluding the effect of the introduction of
the new settlement system, revenue grew by 8.9% to RUR 31,393.9
million.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses for the full year 2004 amounted to
RUR 32,313.0 million.  The year-on-year increase of 11.1% was
caused by higher payments to operators as well as higher staff
costs.  Excluding the effect of the new settlement system,
operating expenses decreased by 1.4% to RUR 26,388.9 million. 

Payments to Russian operators totaled RUR 8,178.0 million in 2004,
a surge of 88.8% year-on-year.  Excluding the effect of the new
settlement system, payments increased by 11.4% to RUR 2,253.9
million due to the growth in traffic volumes.
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Payments to international operators grew by 9.7% to RUR 6,484.0
million.  The increase in payments was driven by the growth in
outgoing ILD traffic compared to 2003.  

Staff costs for the full year 2004 totaled RUR 5,109.0 million,
a 29.5% increase year-on-year. The Company’s headcount was
reduced by 5.5% in 2004. 

The Company’s bad debt provision amounted to RUR 369.0 million,
up 9.5% year-on-year. 

As a result, OIBDA increased 9.2% year-on-year to RUR 12,720.0
million. Due to the introduction of the new settlement system, the
OIBDA margin declined to 34.1%.  OIBDA margin excluding the
effect of the new settlement system increased to 40.5%.

Depreciation charges amounted to RUR 7,498.0 million.  The 9.1%
decrease is due to disposals and full depreciation of certain assets
in the financial year 2003. 

Thus, full year 2004 operating income amounted to RUR 5,005.0
million compared to RUR 2,185.0 million a year ago. Operating
margin rose from 7.0% to 13.4%.

Other Income/Loss

Other income for the full year 2004 amounted to RUR 682.0 million
compared to RUR 1,516.0 million a year ago. The result from other
non-revenue activities for the full year 2003 included an additional
RUR 751.7 million gain from the restructuring of Rostelecom’s debt
to the Ministry of Finance.

Net interest income amounted to RUR 465.0 million compared to
RUR 200.0 million in 2003.  The increase is due to a rise in short-
term deposits as well as reduced debt levels.

Due to the strengthening of the Russian ruble against the major
foreign currencies in 2004, the Company recorded an additional
RUR 102.0 million foreign exchange gain.  

Income Tax

The income tax expense amounted to RUR 1,507.0 million in 2004
compared to RUR 331.0 million for the previous year. The increase
over 2003 is due to the growth in income before taxation. 

Result from Discontinued Operations

As a result of the sale of Rostelecom’s stake in RTC-Leasing the
Company did not record a loss from discontinued operations in
2004. The RUR 3,109.0 million net loss from discontinued
operations, net of tax, for the full year 2003, includes the results of
RTC-Leasing and its subsidiaries, which represent leasing and
banking & investing segments. 

Net Profit

Consolidated net profit increased more than ten-fold from
RUR 398.0 million in 2003 to RUR 4,298.0 million in 2004, while net
margin rose from 1.3% to 11.5%.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY   

As Russia’s national long-distance operator and one of the leading
telecommunications companies in the country, Rostelecom has
strong commitment to good corporate citizenship.

Each year, the Company participates in a number of educational
programs and initiatives. In 2004, Rostelecom developed its
scholarship program to support promising students majoring in
telecommunications and related subjects and also continued to
provide grants to winners of the competition for “Best Scientific
Paper”. 

Rostelecom provides a special concession each year to honor the
service of veterans of the Second World War and celebrate the
May 9 Victory Day. In 2004, all veterans in Moscow were able to
make free calls from the public call offices and subscribers’ service
centers of Rostelecom’s Intercity and International Telephone
(MMT) branch, Mospochtampt’s post offices, military hospitals
and residential lines, not only throughout Russia, but also to CIS
countries and the Baltic States. 

Rostelecom also participates in the “Books for Every Blind Child”
campaign organized by the United Nations and UNESCO for the
World Decade for Cultural Development program.

Since 2003, Rostelecom has been the main sponsor of the Russian
Football Union. 

In June 2004, the Company was one of the organizers of the
Rostelecom Cup match held under the aegis of UEFA’s “Unite
against Racism” program. The match was arranged between the
Russian national team and a team made of Russian Premier
League foreign players selected by football fans by means of
Rostelecom’s “Televoting” intelligent network services.

is how you answer
the phone in Hebrew



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 449R O S T E L E C O M48

140%

120%

60%

100%

80%

40%

20%

0%

Ja
n

 0
4

F
e

b
 0

4

M
a

r 
04

A
p

r 
04

M
a

y 
04

Ju
n

 0
4

Ju
l 0

4

A
u

g
 0

4

S
e

p
 0

4

O
c

t 
04

N
o

v 
04

D
e

c
 0

4

Ja
n

 0
5

F
e

b
 0

5

M
a

r 
05

A
p

r 
05

M
a

y 
05

Ju
n

 0
5

  J
u

l 0
5

Rostelecom ADR price performance relative to the NYSE Composite index

Rostelecom ADRs

NYSE Composite Index

SHARECAPITAL 
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Today, Rostelecom’s charter capital amounts to RUR 2,428,819.4725,
divided into 728,696,320 ordinary and 242,831,469 preferred shares,
each with a par value of RUR 0.0025.

% of ordinary  

% of total shares (voting) shares

Svyazinvest 38.00 50.67

ING Bank (Eurasia)1, including: 22.92 26.43

- JPMorgan Chase Bank as depository 25.12

National Depository Center1 15.07 14.49 

Depository-Clearing Company1 6.54 3.31

1 Nominal holder

The Company’s largest shareholders, as of December 31, 2004 

Dividend history

2001 2002 2003 2004

Dividends, RUR 379,591,809.57 705,566,719.19 1,429,779,574.67 1,785,518,762.29

Dividend per ordinary share 0.2145 0.5435 0.8781 1.4593

% of net profit1 paid to 

ordinary shareholders 7.0 12.8 8.1 14.7

Dividend per preferred share 0.9195 1.2747 3.2530 2.9738

% of net profit1 paid 

to preferred  shareholders 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

1 According to Russian Accounting Standards 

56%

28%

16%

Foreign shareholders

Russian shareholders

Rostelecom employees

Svyazinvest

Foreign shareholders

Russian shareholders

Rostelecom employees

Preferred shares

Ordinary shares

10
3 11

9

15
6

39
6

Total amount of dividend payout

RUR million

00 01 02 03 04

1,200

1,000

600

200

800

400

0

22
3

31
0

64
0

79
0

1,
06

3

72
2

51%

32%

4%13%

160%

140%

120%

60%

100%

80%

40%

20%

0%

Ja
n

 0
4

F
e

b
 0

4

M
a

r 
04

A
p

r 
04

M
a

y 
04

Ju
n

 0
4

Ju
l 0

4

A
u

g
 0

4

S
e

p
 0

4

O
c

t 
04

N
o

v 
04

D
e

c
 0

4

Ja
n

 0
5

F
e

b
 0

5

M
a

r 
05

A
p

r 
05

M
a

y 
05

Ordinary share price performance relative to RTS index

Rostelecom ordinary shares

RTS index

Ju
n

 0
5

Ju
l 0

5

Ownership structure as of December 31, 2004

Ordinary shares Preferred shares



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 451R O S T E L E C O M50

BOARD OF DIRECTORS1 Committees Reporting to the Board of Directors

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Committee members:

Mikhail Slipenchuk     Chairman; General Director of METROPOL
Investment Financial Company Ltd.  

Valery Degtyarev   General Director of Professional
TeleCommunications

Stanislav Panchenko Deputy General Director of Svyazinvest

Grigory Finger    Head of Moscow Representative Office 
of NCH Advisors, Inc.

The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in overseeing
the quality and integrity of the Company’s financial statements, the qualifications and
independence of the Company’s independent auditor, the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function and of the independent auditor as well as the Company’s compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

In 2004, the Committee’s primary tasks were to develop remuneration policies for members
of the Board of Directors and the Company’s management, including the development of
evaluation criteria; to determine the criteria for the selection of candidates for the Board of
Directors; and, to develop the Company’s human resources policies. 

Strategic Planning Committee

Committee members:

Vadim Belov     Chairman; General Director of the Intersputnik
International Organization of Space
Communications  

Andrei Gaiduk    Deputy General Director – 
Financial Director of Rostelecom

Dmitry Yerokhin  General Director of Rostelecom 

Mikhail Slipenchuk    General Director of METROPOL Investment
Financial Company Ltd.

Yevgeny Yurchenko    Deputy General Director of Comstar-UTS 

In 2004, the Committee’s primary tasks were to establish the Company’s strategic
development plan through 2010 in light of future liberalization of the Russian telecoms market,
and to verify its fulfillment; to develop recommendations on dividend policy, changes to current
strategy and introduction of investment planning and monitoring; and, to evaluate the
Company’s long-term potential for raising efficiency.

General Director of Svyazinvest 

Executive Director – Director for Economic
and Tariff Policies of Svyazinvest

General Director of the Intersputnik
International Organization of Space
Communications 

General Director of Professional 
TeleCommunications, independent director
of Rostelecom

General Director of Rostelecom

Deputy General Director of Svyazinvest

President of Russian Telecommunications
Network

Director of Corporate Governance 
Department of Svyazinvest

General Director of METROPOL
Investment Financial Company Ltd.,
independent director of Rostelecom

Head of Moscow Representative Office of
NCH Advisors, Inc., independent director
of Rostelecom

Deputy General Director of Comstar United
Telesystems (Comstar-UTS)

Valery Yashin 

Members of the Board:

Stanislav Avdiyants

Vadim Belov

Valery Degtyarev 

Dmitry Yerokhin

Stanislav Panchenko

Victor Polishchuk

Irina Ragozina

Mikhail Slipenchuk

Grigory Finger

Yevgeny Yurchenko

Chairman of the Board:

1 The Board of Directors as elected at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting 
on June 26, 2004.

Audit Committee

Committee members:

Grigory Finger    Chairman; Head of Moscow Representative
Office of NCH Advisors, Inc.

Valery Degtyarev   General Director of Professional
TeleCommunications  

Mikhail Slipenchuk General Director of METROPOL Investment
Financial Company Ltd. 

Stanislav Avdiyants Director for Economic and Tariff Policies
of Svyazinvest (non-voting member with 
“observer” status)
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MANAGEMENT BOARD (as of May 1, 2005) 

Dmitry Yerokhin 
General Director of
Rostelecom 

Sergei Akopov
Deputy General Director –
Administrative Director of
Rostelecom

Dmitry Gurevich
Deputy General Director –
Project Management
Director of Rostelecom

Vadim Izotov
Deputy General Director –
Chief Information Officer of
Rostelecom 

Igor Kalugin
First Deputy General
Director of Rostelecom –
Director of Rostelecom’s
Intercity and International
Telephone (MMT) branch

Alexander Lutsky
Chief Accountant of
Rostelecom

Olga Rumyantseva
Commercial Director of
Rostelecom 

Georgy Romsky
General Director of
Southern
Telecommunications
Company  

Vladimir Terekhov
First Deputy General
Director of Rostelecom

Vladimir Mironov
Deputy General Director of
Rostelecom

Galina Rysakova
Deputy General Director –
Director for Organizational
Development and Human
Resources of Rostelecom

Dmitry Sigalov
Deputy General Director for
Legal Affairs of Rostelecom

Chairman
of the Management
Board:

Members 
of the Management Board:

Andrei Gaiduk
Deputy General Director  –
Financial Director of
Rostelecom 
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Committees Reporting to the Management Board 

Тariff Committee 

In 2004, the Committee focused on tariff system development and
optimization. It is responsible for determining tariff policies that
support Rostelecom’s goal of generating revenue growth amid
increasing competition.

Budget and Investment Committee

Throughout the year, the Committee focused on the Company’s
investment projects and programs for 2004 and 2005, and the
2005 budgets of Rostelecom’s branches and business units.
In addition, it analyzed Rostelecom’s performance against its 2004
budget objectives, both at the level of the consolidated company
and the individual branches and business units. 

Tender Committee

During 2004, the Committee approved a number of decisions
including the selection of an insurance company to offer voluntary
health insurance to Rostelecom employees as from 2005; selection
of contractors for the construction of trunk lines and other
telecoms facilities; and equipment suppliers for the construction
of a secure data center.

Remuneration Committee 

The Committee’s primary tasks are to support the development of
an effective remuneration system by correlating the Company’s
employee compensation and remuneration policies with
Rostelecom’s strategic objectives. 

Disclosure Committee

In 2004, the Committee formulated Rostelecom’s Information
Disclosure Policy as well as relevant guidelines for Company
information disclosure.

Audit Commission 

The Company’s Audit Commission was elected at the Annual
General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 26, 2004, and is
composed of the following members:

Irina Prokofyeva Chairman; Director of Internal Audit
Department of Svyazinvest

Konstantin Belyaev Chief Accountant of Svayzinvest

Yevgeny Pelymsky Deputy Chief Accountant, Head of Financial
Reporting Department of Rostelecom

INFORMATION ON ROSTELECOM SHARES

Free float:

62.00% of the share capital 
(49.33% of ordinary share (ORD); 100.00% of preferred shares (PREF)

Major Russian securities markets: 

RTS, MICEX

Ticker symbol: 

Ordinary shares - RTKM 
Preferred shares - RTKMP

Financial reporting:

RAS (quarterly) 
IFRS (semi-annually)

Dividend policy:

PREF: 10.0% of the full financial year RAS net profit
ORD: recommended by the Board of Directors

American Depositary Receipts (ADR) Program:

Type:  ADR Level II  (1 ADR = 6 ordinary shares)

Ticker symbol:  ROS

Outstanding as of December 31, 2004:

25.12% of ordinary shares (24.27% - as of December 31, 2003)

ADR Depositary Bank: 

JPMorgan Chase Bank
60 Wall Street, 36th Floor, New York, NY 10260, USA 

Custodian: 

ING Bank (Eurasia) ZAO
36 Krasnoproletarskaya Street, Moscow 127473, Russia

Major securities markets: 

■ New York Stock Exchange (listed security) 
■ London Stock Exchanges (traded over the counter)
■ Frankfurt Stock Exchanges (traded over the counter)
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

To the Shareholders of OAO Rostelecom

1. International convention requires that management prepare consolidated financial
statements which present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Group at
the end of each financial period and of the results and cash flows for each period.
Management are responsible for ensuring that all Group entities keep accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of each entity and which
enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards and that their statutory accounting reports comply with
Russian laws and regulations. They also have a general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

2. Management considers that, in preparing the consolidated financial statements set out on
pages  5 to 60, the Group has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, and that appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed.

3. The consolidated financial statements, which are based on the statutory accounting reports
adjusted to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards, are hereby approved
on behalf of the Board of Directors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors:

D.E. Erokhin,    
General Director

OAO Rostelecom
1st Tverskaya-Yamskaya, 14,
Moscow
Russian Federation

June 22, 2005

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of OAO Rostelecom

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of OAO Rostelecom, an
open joint stock company, and subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows
and changes in shareholders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.  We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Group’s
internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards as published by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the 2003 and 2002
consolidated financial statements have been restated to adjust the Group’s accounting for
revenue and expense estimates from local operators, pension benefits and its earnings per
share calculations.

International Financial Reporting Standards vary in certain significant respects from
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Information relating
to the nature and effect of such differences is presented in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Moscow, Russia
June 22, 2005

CJSC Ernst&Young Vneshaudit

Sadovnicheskaya Nab.,
77, bld.1
Moscow, 115035, Russia
Tel.: 7 (095) 705-9700

7 (095) 755-9700
Fax: 7 (095) 755-9701
www.ey.com/russia

ЗАО «Эрнст энд Янг Внешаудит»

Россия, 115035, Москва
Садовническая наб.,
77, стр. 1
Тел.: 7 (095) 705-9700

7 (095) 755-9700
Факс: 7 (095) 755-9701
ОКПО: 001397907
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In millions of Russian Rubles, refer to Note 5)

December 31, 
2003

December 31,  (as restated, 
Notes 2004 see Note 2)

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment, net 7 45,987 49,585

Investments in associates 9 2,511 2,381

Long-term financial investments 10 264 126

Goodwill 11 9 17

Other non-current assets 17 26

Non-current assets 48,788 52,135

Inventory 614 548

Accounts receivable, net 12 5,613 7,081

Short-term investments 13 8,150 2,755

Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,255 2,529

Current assets 15,632 12,913

Total assets 64,420 65,048

Share capital 15 100 100

Retained earnings 50,738 47,870

Total shareholders' equity 50,838 47,970

Minority interest 16 - 191

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17 4,005 3,688

Taxes payable 1,154 1,778

Current portion of interest bearing loans 18 1,107 1,932

Current liabilities 6,266 7,398

Interest bearing loans – net of current portion 18 777 1,641

Non-current accounts payable 585 366

Deferred tax liability 19 5,954 7,482

Non-current liabilities 7,316 9,489

Total liabilities 13,582 16,887

Total shareholders' equity, minority interest and liabilities 64,420 65,048

Commitments and contingencies 30 and 31 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(In millions of Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated, refer to Note 5)

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 
(as restated, (as restated, 

Notes 2004 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Revenue

Local operators 22,648 15,792 12,722 

Subscribers 8,740 9,319 9,171 

Foreign operators 4,560 4,483 5,100 

Other 1,370 1,673 860 

Total revenue 20 37,318 31,267 27,853 

Operating expenses

Wages, salaries, other benefits and payroll taxes (5,109) (3,946) (3,476)

Depreciation 7 (7,498) (8,252) (9,089)

Charges by network operators – international (6,484) (5,913) (5,779)

Charges by network operators – national (8,178) (4,331) (1,707)

Administration and other costs 22 (3,058) (3,782) (3,336)

Taxes other than on income (587) (507) (793)

Repairs and maintenance (813) (800) (452)

Bad debt expense 12 (369) (337) (874)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (217) (1,214) (449)

Total operating expenses (32,313) (29,082) (25,955)

Operating profit 5,005 2,185 1,898 

Gain from associates (before tax) 9 118 207 314 

Interest expense (13) (202) (348)

Interest income 478 402 310 

Income from sale of investments - 25 1,724 

Other non-operating income, net 24 115 1,219 300 

Foreign exchange gain /(loss), net 102 72 (933)

Monetary gain - - 610 

Income before tax and minority interest 5,805 3,908 3,875 

Current tax charge 25 (2,892) (2,002) (2,363)

Deferred tax benefit 25 1,528 1,763 1,511 

Share in income taxes of associates 9, 25 (143) (92) (115)

Income tax expense (1,507) (331) (967)

Income after taxation 4,298 3,577 2,908 

Minority interest 16 - (70) 82 

Net income from continuing operations 4,298 3,507 2,990 

Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, 

including write-down of property, plant and equipment 

of 419 and nil for 2003 and 2002, respectively 23 - (3,109) (2,251)

Net income 4,298 398 739 

Rubles Rubles Rubles

Earnings per  share – basic and diluted 27 4.42 0.41 0.76 

Earnings per  share – continuing operations 27 4.42 3.61 3.08 

Loss per share – discontinued operations 27 - (3.20) (2.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions of Russian Rubles, refer to Note 5)

Year ended December 31,

2003 2004
(as restated, (as restated, 

Note 2004 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income before tax, minority interest 

and discontinued operations 5,805 3,908 3,875 

Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax, 

minority interest and  discontinued operations 

to cash generated from operating activities:

Net loss from discontinued operations 

before tax and minority interest 23 - (2,116) (508)

Depreciation 7 7,498 8,276 9,106 

Bad debt expense 12 369 339 863 

Gain from associates, before tax 9 (118) (295) (393)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 217 1,214 449 

Loss /(income) from sale of investments - 98 (1,840)

Net interest and other non-operating income (580) (491) (117)

Loss from discontinued operations - 804 - 

Write-down of property, plant and equipment - 551 - 

Other non-monetary expense / (income) 4 (42) (77)

Foreign exchange (gain) /loss, net (102) (13) 983 

Monetary gain - - (281)

Changes in net working capital:

Decrease / (increase) in accounts receivable 4,581 (2,540) 733 

Increase in lease receivables - (3,685) (3,408)

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories (81) (46) 187 

(Decrease) /increase in payables and accruals (7,132) (1,335) 594 

Cash generated from operations 10,461 4,627 10,166 

Interest paid (94) (956) (1,270)

Interest received 202 577 375 

Income tax paid (2,815) (2,173) (3,558)

Net cash provided by operating activities 7,754 2,075 5,713 

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,502) (3,328) (2,281)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 289 21 23 

Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired - (642) (1,138)

Purchase of available-for-sale investments (securities), net (13,550) (8,415) (2,198)

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments, 

net of direct costs 12,279 9,140 1,970 

Advances to investee and other companies issued - - (1,020)

Advances to investee and other companies received - - 1,046 

Dividends received from associates 74 13 97 

Repayment of lease obligations 23 (520) (3,520) - 

Cash (disposed of) / received on discontinuance 

of segments, net of cash disposed of (123) 91 - 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,053) (6,640) (3,501)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of bonds - - 1,532 

Redemption of bonds  - - (1,021)

Drawdown of interest bearing loans 343 9,939 5,879 

Repayment of interest bearing loans (1,951) (6,471) (6,165)

Proceeds from issuance of promissory notes - 2,208 1,344 

Redemption of promissory notes - (1,455) (1,347)

Dividends paid (1,359) (706) (363)

Dividends paid to minority shareholders of a subsidiary - (29) (294)

Proceeds from sale of additional ordinary 

shares by a subsidiary - - 24 

Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (2,967) 3,486 (411)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (8) (34) 36 

Net (decrease) /increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,274) (1,113) 1,837 

Monetary effects on cash - - (417)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,529 3,642 2,222 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,255 2,529 3,642 

Non-monetary transactions:

Non-cash additions to property, plant and equipment 24 - 316 103 

Financial instruments received in connection 

with disposition of property, plant and equipment - - 545 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In millions of Russian Rubles, refer to Note 5)

Note Share capital Retained earnings Total

Balance at December 31, 2001, 

as previously reported 100 48,654 48,754 

Restatement of revenues and expenses from 

local operators (see Note 2) - (638) (638)

Change in method of accounting for certain 

post-employee benefits (see Note 2) - (178) (178)

Balance at December 31, 2001, as restated 100 47,838 47,938 

Dividends - (399) (399)

Net income for the year 

(as restated, see Note 2) - 739 739 

Balance at December 31, 2002, as restated 100 48, 178 48,278 

Dividends 15 - (706) (706)

Net income for the year

(as restated, see Note 2) - 398 398 

Balance at December 31, 2003, as restated 100 47,870 47,970 

Dividends 15 - (1,430) (1,430)

Net income for the year - 4,298 4,298 

Balance at December 31, 2004 100 50,738 50,838 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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In December 2003 the IASB published revised International Accounting Standard No. 33 (IAS
No.33), “Earnings per share”. IAS No. 33, as revised, requires the application of the “two-
class method” to determine earnings applicable to ordinary shareholders, the amount of
which is used as a nominator to calculate earnings per ordinary share.  The application of the
“two-class method” requires that the profit or loss after deducting preferred dividends is
allocated to ordinary shares and other participating equity instruments to the extent that each
instrument shares in earnings as if all of the profit or loss for the period had been distributed.
The total profit or loss allocated to each class of equity instrument is determined by adding
together the amount allocated for dividends and the amount allocated for a participation
feature.  The Group has early adopted provisions of IAS No. 33 and applied them to the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, and retrospectively restated the
amounts reported earlier for 2003 and 2002. 

The reconciliation of earnings per share, as restated, and earnings per share previously
reported for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002

Total earnings per share – continuing operations, as previously reported 4.57 3.70 

Restatement of revenues and expenses from local operators (0.18) 0.08 

Application of the ‘two-class’ method (0.78) (0.70)

Total earnings per share – continuing operations, as restated 3.61 3.08 

2003 2002

Total losses per share – discontinued operations, as previously reported (4.27) (3.09)

Application of the ‘two-class’ method 1.07 0.77 

Total losses per share - discontinued operations, as restated (3.20) (2.32)

2003 2002

Total earnings per share, as previously reported 0.30 0.61 

Restatement of revenues and expenses from local operators (0.18) 0.08 

Application of the ‘two-class’ method 0.29 0.07 

Total earnings per share, as restated 0.41 0.76 

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
and comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as published by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

The Group maintains its accounting records and prepares its statutory accounting reports in
accordance with Russian accounting legislation and instructions in Russian Rubles (Rbl).
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are based on the underlying accounting
records, appropriately adjusted and reclassified for fair presentation in accordance with the
standards and interpretations prescribed by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost
convention, restated for the effects of inflation and modified by the initial valuation of
property, plant and equipment as further disclosed in Note 6 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The functional currency of the Group and the reporting
currency for the accompanying consolidated financial statements is the Russian Ruble.  

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The most significant
estimates relate to the recoverability and depreciable lives of property, plant and equipment,
allowance for doubtful accounts, and deferred taxation. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented by OAO “Rostelecom”
(“Rostelecom” or the “Company”), and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), which are
incorporated in the Russian Federation (“Russia”). The principal activity of the Group is the
provision of intercity and international telecommunications services to the Government,
businesses and people of Russia. The Group operates the main intercity network and the
international telecommunications gateways of the Russian Federation, carrying traffic that
originates in other national and international operators networks to other national and
international operators for termination. 

The Company’s headquarters are located in Moscow at 1st Tverskaya-Yamskaya Street, 14. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of operations of
the Company and its subsidiaries, as detailed in Note 8.

Rostelecom was established as an open joint stock company on September 23, 1993 in
accordance with the Directive of the State Committee on the Management of State Property
of Russia No. 1507-r, dated August 27, 1993. As of December 31, 2004, the Government of
the Russian Federation controlled indirectly 50.67% of the voting share capital of the
Company, by virtue of its 75% less one share direct holding in OAO Svyazinvest
(“Svyazinvest”), the parent company of Rostelecom.

2. RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In 2004, the Group reviewed the bases on which certain revenues from local operators and
related expenses were recognized and determined that not all conditions necessary for
revenue and related expenses to be recognized had been met. As a result, management
considered it appropriate to correct revenues and expenses and respective accounts
receivable and payable as of December 31, 2003 and the two years then ended as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002

Decrease in revenue from local operators (623) (36)

Decrease in charges by network operators – national 449 - 

Decrease in operating profit (174) (36)

Increase in monetary gain - 116 

(Decrease) /increase in income before tax and minority interest (174) 80 

Decrease / (increase) in income tax expense 42 (19)

(Decrease) /increase in net income from continuing operations and net income (132) 61

December 31, 2003

Decrease in current assets (1,210)

Decrease in total assets (1,210)

Decrease in current liabilities (276)

Decrease in total liabilities (501)

Decrease in total shareholders’ equity (709)

Effect on periods prior to 2003:

Decrease in total shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2002 (577)

Decrease in total shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2001 (638)

In addition, during 2004, the Group retrospectively changed its method of accounting for
certain post-employment benefits.  Previously, the Group accounted for them as termination
benefits. They are now accounted for as a defined benefit plan and the estimated benefits are
determined using an actuarial method.  In connection with this change, the Company
recorded a liability as of December 31, 2001 of 178 and a corresponding reduction of retained
earnings. 
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4. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT OF THE GROUP 

General 

The Russian economy while deemed to be of market status continues to display certain
characteristics consistent with that of a market in transition. These characteristics include,
but are not limited to, relatively high inflation and the existence of currency controls which
cause the national currency to be illiquid outside of Russia.  The stability of the Russian
economy will be significantly impacted by the government’s policies and actions with regards
to supervisory, legal, and economic reforms. As a result, there are significant uncertainties that
may affect future operations, the recoverability of the Group’s assets, and the ability of the
Group to maintain or pay its debts as they mature.  The accompanying consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the future clarification of these
uncertainties. Such adjustments, if any, will be reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period when they become known and can be reasonably estimated.  

Currency exchange and control

Foreign currencies, in particular the US Dollar, play a significant role in the underlying
economics of many business transactions in Russia. Following the 1998 economic crisis,
the Ruble’s value fell significantly against the US Dollar, falling from a pre-crisis rate of
approximately 6 Rubles to 1 US Dollar, to 27 Rubles to 1 US Dollar by the end of 1999.
During 2000 - 2004, the Ruble’s value fluctuated between 26.9 and 31.8 to 1 US Dollar.
As of June 22, 2005, the exchange rate was 28.55 Rubles to 1 US Dollar.

The following table summarizes the exchange rate of the Ruble to 1 US Dollar as of
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Exchange Rate

As of December 31,

2004 27.75

2003 29.45

2002 31.78

Source: Central Bank of Russia

The Central Bank of Russia has established strict currency control regulations designed to
promote the commercial utilization of the Ruble.  Such regulations place restrictions on the
conversion of Rubles into foreign currencies and establish requirements for partial conversion
of foreign currency sales to Rubles. 

Inflation

The Russian economy has been characterized by relatively high rates of inflation.
The following table summarizes the annual rate of inflation for the past three years:

Annual inflation

For the year ended December 31, 

2004 11.7%

2003 12.0%

2002 15.1%

Source: Federal Service of Public Statistics

The Group’s principal inflation rate risk relates to the Group’s ability to recover the
investments in non-monetary assets, specifically property, plant and equipment, as well as to
raise tariffs for services in line with the growth of operating expenses caused by inflation.
In the event high levels of inflation continue, the Group could have financial difficulties
accompanied by deterioration in its results of operations and liquidity position.

Taxation

Russia currently has a number of laws related to various taxes imposed by both federal and
regional governmental authorities.  Applicable taxes include value added tax, corporate
income tax (profits tax), turnover based taxes, and payroll (social) taxes, together with others.
Laws related to these taxes have not been in force for significant periods, in contrast to more

developed market economies.  Therefore, the government's implementation of these
regulations is often inconsistent or nonexistent.  Accordingly, few precedents with regard to
tax rulings have been established.  Tax declarations, together with other legal compliance
areas (for example, customs and currency control matters), are subject to review and
investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose extremely severe
fines, penalties and interest charges.  These facts create tax risks in Russia substantially more
significant than typically found in countries with more developed tax systems.  In recent
years, the Russian government has initiated revisions of the Russian tax system.  Effective
January 1, 1999, the first part of the Tax Code was enacted. Effective January 1, 2001, the
second part of the Tax Code was enacted.  The new tax system is generally intended to
reduce the number of taxes and, thus, the overall tax burden on businesses, and to simplify
the tax laws.  

Refer to Note 31 for description of possible tax contingencies.

5. ACCOUNTING FOR THE EFFECTS OF INFLATION 

Prior to December 31, 2002, the Russian Federation met the definition of a hyperinflationary
economy as defined by International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) No. 29, “Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”.

IAS No. 29 requires that financial statements prepared on a historical cost basis be adjusted
to take into account the effects of inflation, for entities reporting in hyperinflationary
economies.  The Group has utilized the general price index reported by the Federal Service of
Public Statistics in the application of IAS No. 29. 

Effective January 1, 2003, the economy of the Russian Federation ceased to meet the criteria
of hyperinflationary economy. Accordingly, beginning January 1, 2003, the Company ceased
to apply IAS No. 29 on a prospective basis.

As a result of this change, the carrying amounts of non-monetary assets expressed in the
Russian Rubles current at December 31, 2002 formed the carrying basis for the respective
assets at January 1, 2003.

Transactions undertaken subsequent to December 31, 2002 are reported at actual, nominal
amounts except for those involving non-monetary assets and liabilities acquired and incurred
prior to January 1, 2003. Results of operations (including gains and losses on disposal)
involving such assets and liabilities are recognized based on the restated cost, which was
calculated by applying to the carrying values of these assets and liabilities the change in the
general price index through December 31, 2002. 

Items included in the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2002 have been restated by applying the change in the general price index
from the dates when the items were initially recorded through December 31, 2002.

6. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Set out below are the principal accounting policies used to prepare the accompanying
consolidated financial statements:

Principles of consolidation

The Group comprises the Company, its subsidiaries and associates. A subsidiary is an entity
that is controlled by the Company, either through ownership, directly or indirectly, of more
than 50% of the voting share capital of the entity, or by other means.  Transactions and
balances between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated. The accounting policies
of the subsidiaries were adjusted to conform to those of the Group. Companies where the
Group owns more than 50% of the voting share capital but the minority shareholder enjoys
substantive participation rights and has effective veto rights that would prevent the Group
from taking decisions that are significant in the ordinary course of business, i.e. the Group is
unable to exercise control, are accounted for under the equity method.

Associates in which the Group has significant influence but not a controlling interest are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.  Significant influence is usually
demonstrated by the Group owning, directly or indirectly, between 20% and 50% of the voting
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ownership interest or by exerting significant influence through other means. The Group’s share of
the net income or losses of associates is included in the consolidated statement of income, and
the Group's share of the net assets of associates is included in the consolidated balance sheet.
An assessment of investments in associates for possible impairment or reversal of impairment
recognized previously is performed when there is an indication that the asset has been impaired
or the impairment losses recognized in prior years no longer exist.  When the Group’s share of
losses exceeds the carrying amount of the investment, the investment is reported at nil value and
recognition of losses is discontinued except to the extent of the Group’s commitment to fund
future losses.  Unrealized profits that arise from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated in the proportion to the Group’s share in such associates, and
unrealized losses are excluded in the proportion to the Group’s share in such associates, if there
is no evidence of indicators of impairment of an asset transferred.

Goodwill and negative goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary/associated undertaking at the date of
acquisition.  Goodwill on an acquisition of a subsidiary is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill on an acquisition of an associate is included in the investments in associate. 

Goodwill arising from acquisitions prior to March 31, 2004 is amortised using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life.  Goodwill relating to acquisitions from March 31, 2004 is
not amortised but is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may be impaired.  As at the acquisition date,
any goodwill acquired in acquisitions from March 31, 2004 is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies.  Impairment is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, to which the
goodwill relates.  Where recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operations within that unit
are disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. 

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition. 

Negative goodwill arising from acquisitions prior to March 31, 2004 is presented in the same
balance sheet classifications as goodwill.  To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified in the Group’s plan for the
acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities,
that portion of negative goodwill is recognised in the statement of operations when the future
losses and expenses are recognised.  Any remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair
values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised in the statement of operations
over the remaining weighted average useful life of depreciable and amortisable assets
acquired; negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of those assets is recognised in the
statement of operations immediately.

If negative goodwill arises on acquisitions after March 31, 2004 a reassessment of the
identification and measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities and
contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the combination is made. Any
excess of fair values over the cost of the business combination remaining after the
reassessment is recognized in the statement of operations.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value. The cost of the network comprises all expenditures up to and including
the cabling and wiring to the local telephone operator's intercity exchange, and includes
contractors' charges and payments on account, materials, direct labour, and interest costs on
specific project financing up to the date of commissioning of the relevant assets.

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized if it can be clearly demonstrated that they extend
the life of the asset or significantly increase its revenue generating capacity beyond its
originally assessed standard of performance.  Expenditure for continuing repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of income as incurred. Social assets are expensed
on acquisition.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are retired or otherwise disposed of are
eliminated from the balance sheet along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation.
Any gain or loss resulting from such retirement or disposal is included in the determination
of net income.

Depreciation is calculated on property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis from the
time the assets are available for use, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Number of years

Buildings and site services  10 – 50

Cable and transmission devices:

• Channels 10 – 40

• Cable 30 – 40

• Radio and fixed link transmission equipment  15 – 20

• Telephone exchanges  15

Other 5 – 10

The useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
methods and the periods of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.  

At each balance sheet date an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that
the Group’s assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an assessment is made to
establish whether the recoverable amount of the assets has declined below the carrying
amount of those assets as disclosed in the financial statements. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount of the assets is reduced to the recoverable amount.
The amount of any such reduction is recognized immediately as an expense in the statement
of income. Any subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of the assets are reversed
when the circumstances that led to the write-down or write-off cease to exist and there is
persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable
future.  Increase of the recoverable amount is limited to the lower of its recoverable amount
and carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the assets’ fair value less cost to sell,
or value in use.  The value in use of the asset is estimated based on forecast of future cash
inflows and outflows to be derived from continued use of the asset and from the estimated
net proceeds on disposal, discounted to present value using an appropriate discount rate. 

For the purpose of determining the opening balances on the first application of IFRS at
1 January 1994, the Company performed a valuation of the property, plant and equipment,
as reliable historical cost information and information regarding acquisition dates was not
available. These values were used as deemed cost. A brief description of the methodology
applied in performing this valuation is set out below for each major asset category:

• Buildings and site services  - current replacement cost;
• Cable and transmission devices - current replacement cost;
• Telephone exchanges - modern equivalent asset;
• Assets in course of construction - indexed historical cost.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost. This
includes cost of construction, plant and equipment and other direct costs. Construction in
progress is not depreciated until the constructed or installed asset is ready for its intended
use.

Inventory

Inventory principally consists of fuel and spare parts for the network. Inventory is stated at the
lower of cost incurred in bringing each item to its present location and its net realizable value.
Cost is calculated on a first in first out basis. Items used in the construction of new plant and
equipment are capitalized as part of the related asset. Inventory used in the maintenance of
equipment is charged to operating costs as utilized and included in repair and maintenance
and other costs in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.  
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Accounts receivable

Receivables are stated in the balance sheet at the fair value of the consideration given and
are carried at amortized cost, after provision for impairment. Bad debts are written off in the
period in which they are identified.

Provision for impairment is created based on the historical pattern of collections of accounts
receivable and specific analysis of recoverability of significant accounts.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances,
investments (other than in consolidated subsidiaries and equity method investees),
receivables, accounts payable and borrowings. The particular recognition methods adopted
for financial instruments are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with
each item. 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: loans and receivables originated
by the Group, held-to-maturity, trading and available-for-sale. Loans and receivables
originated by the Group are financial assets created by providing money, goods or services
directly to a debtor, unless they are originated with the intent to be sold immediately.
Investments in debt instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that
the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments. Investments in debt and equity instruments acquired principally for the
purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price are classified as trading.
All other investments are classified as available-for-sale.

The Group had no securities classified as held-to-maturity or trading at December 31, 2004
and 2003.  Loans and receivables originated by the Group, including lease receivables are
stated at amortized cost determined on an individual basis. Available-for-sale investments are
stated at fair value determined on an individual investment basis.  The Group has chosen to
include unrealized gains and losses  on the available-for-sale investments in the determination
of net income. Income from available-for-sale investments is included in other non-operating
income in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income from investments is accrued
during the period in which it is earned.

The Company and the Group do not enter into hedging transactions.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received,
net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods, borrowings are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method; any difference between the fair value
of the consideration received (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised as interest expense over the period of the borrowings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with banks, and highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, with insignificant risks of
diminution in value.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences:
• except where the deferred income tax liability arises from goodwill amortization or the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-
forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry-
forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilized:
• except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference

arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognized to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Any such
previously recognized reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset will be realized or the liability settled.  Tax rates are based on laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Revenue and operating costs recognition

Revenue and operating costs for all services supplied and received are recognized at the time
the services are rendered. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the enterprise and the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenues and expenses are reported net of respective value added
tax.

The Company charges and pays to regional telephone operators and other
telecommunication service providers in Russia either an agreed proportion of the amounts
they bill to their subscribers or an agreed settlement rate based on traffic minutes (refer to
Note 20).  For outgoing telephone traffic originating in Moscow, subscribers are charged
directly by the Company based on pre-set per minute tariffs. 

The Company charges amounts to foreign network operators for incoming calls and other
traffic that originate outside Russia.  The Group is charged by foreign operators for
completing international calls. These revenues and costs are shown gross in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Amounts payable to and receivable from the same operators are shown net in the balance
sheet where a legal right of offset exists.

Employee benefits

Through December 31, 2003 the Company made certain payments to employees on
retirement, or when they otherwise left the employment of the Company.  These obligations,
which were unfunded, represented obligations under a defined benefit pension scheme.
For such plans, the pension accounting costs were assessed using the projected unit credit
method. Under this method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to the statement of
income so as to spread the regular cost over the average service lives of employees.
Actuarial gains and losses were recognized in the statement of income immediately.

Where such post-employment employee benefits fell due more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, they were discounted using a discount rate determined by reference to
market yields on Government bonds at the balance sheet date. This benefit plan was
curtailed and settled on December 31, 2003.

The Company also participates in a defined contribution plan. Contributions made by the
Company on defined contribution plans are charged to expenses when incurred. Effective
January 1, 2004, maximum contribution is established at 100 Rubles per month per
employee.



OAO ROSTELECOM / Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 200473OAO ROSTELECOM / Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 200472

The Company also grants additional pensions to employees as an incentive to retire at
statutory retirement age. Contributions are made to a separately administered fund. Based on
a history of paying such postretirement benefits, the plan is accounted for as a defined
benefit pension scheme. 

The Company accrues for the employees’ compensated absences (vacations) as the
additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused vacation that
has accumulated at the balance sheet date. 

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are charged to the statement of income as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed, except for those that would have been avoided if the
expenditure to acquire the qualifying asset had not been made. To the extent that funds are
borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset.  The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing
costs applicable to the borrowings of the enterprise that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining the qualifying asset.
Qualifying borrowing costs are capitalized with the relevant qualifying asset from the date the
activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are
being incurred until the related asset is substantially ready for its intended use. Capitalized
borrowing costs are subsequently charged to the statement of income in the period over
which the asset is depreciated.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Rubles at the exchange
rate as of the transaction date. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
into Rubles at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on reporting the
Group's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded in
the period, or reported in previous financial statements, are recorded as foreign currency
exchange gains or losses in the period in which they arise.

As at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the rates of exchange used for translating foreign
currency balances were (in Russian Rubles for one unit of foreign currency):

2004 2003

US Dollars 27.75 29.45

Japanese Yen 0.2675 0.2754

Special Drawing Rights (SDR) 42.98 43.60

EURO 37.81 36.82

Source: the Central Bank of Russia

Dividends

Dividends are recognized when the shareholder's right to receive the payment is established.
Dividends in respect of the period covered by the financial statements that are proposed or
declared after the balance sheet date but before approval of the financial statements are not
recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date in accordance with IAS No. 10, “Events After
the Balance Sheet Date”. The amount of dividends proposed or declared after the balance
sheet date but before the financial statements were authorized for issue is disclosed in Note 15.

Minority interest

Minority interest includes that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, by the Company. Minority interest is carried at the minority’s proportion of the
pre-acquisition carrying amounts of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the

subsidiaries. The losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated subsidiary may exceed
the minority interest in the equity of the subsidiary. The excess, and any further losses
applicable to the minority, are charged against the majority interest, except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make good for the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the majority interest is allocated all such profits until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the majority has been recovered. If a
subsidiary or an associate has outstanding cumulative preferred shares which are held
outside the Group, the Company computes its share of profit or losses after adjusting for the
preferred dividends, whether or not the dividends have been declared. 

As further discussed below, IFRS No.3, Business combinations, applicable for business
combinations for which the agreement date is on or after March 31, 2004, requires the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized as part of
allocating the cost of the combination to be measured initially by the acquirer at their fair
values at the acquisition date.  Therefore, any minority interest in the acquiree is stated at the
minority’s proportion of the net fair values of those items.

Segment information

Operating segments are the primary segments of the Group. The Group identified the
following operating segments:

• Telecommunications services
• Leasing services
• Banking and investing activities

Operating segments were identified based on the organizational structure of the Group and
types of activities the Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in. 

The accounting principles used to reflect transactions between reportable segments are the
same as those used for transactions with external parties.

Effective December 1, 2003, the Company discontinued two of its components represented
by the leasing and banking and investing business segments (refer to Notes 21 and 23).

Discontinued operations

In March 2004, the International Accounting Standards Board issued an International
Financial Reporting Standard No. 5 (IFRS No. 5), “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.  IFRS No. 5 sets out requirements for the classification,
measurement and presentation of non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale and discontinued operations. 

IFRS No. 5 requires assets or disposal groups that are expected to be sold and meet specific
criteria to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Such
assets should not be depreciated and should be presented separately in the balance sheet.

In addition, IFRS No. 5 withdraws IAS No. 35 (IAS No. 35), “Discontinuing Operations”, and
replaces it with requirement that operations forming a major line of business or area of
geographical operations to be classified as discontinued when the assets in the operations
are classified as held for sale or when the entity has disposed of the operation. IFRS No. 5
specifies that the results of discontinued operations are to be shown separately on the face of
the income statement and requires an entity to re-represent respective amounts for prior
periods presented in the financial statements so that this presentation relate to all operations
that have been classified as discontinued by the latest balance sheet date.

IFRS No. 5 also requires certain disclosures in respect to assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale and discontinued operations.

Entities shall apply requirements of IFRS No. 5 for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2005, with earlier application encouraged.  

The Group has early adopted provisions of IFRS No. 5 and applied them to the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2003.  In connection with early adoption of
provisions of IFRS No. 5, the Group has early adopted certain amendments to existing
current International Accounting and International Financial Reporting Standards, which are
directly affected by the new requirements.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts reported in the prior period consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

New accounting pronouncements

During 2003-2004, the IASB published several revised International Accounting Standards,
issued several new International Financial Reporting Standards and gave notice of the
withdrawal of one International Accounting Standard. Most of these revised and new
standards will apply to accounting periods commencing on or after January 1, 2005. The new
pronouncements are the following: 

• IAS No. 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”, 
• IAS No. 2, “Inventories”, 
• IAS No. 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”,
• IAS No. 10, “Events after the Balance Sheet Date”,
• IAS No. 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment”,
• IAS No. 17, “Leases”,
• IAS No. 19, “Employee Benefits”,
• IAS No. 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, 
• IAS No. 24, “Related Party Disclosures”, 
• IAS No. 27, “Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Investments 

in Subsidiaries”, 
• IAS No. 28, “Investments in Associates”, 
• IAS No. 31, ”Interests in Joint Ventures”, 
• IAS No. 32, “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation (revised 2003)”,
• IAS No. 33, “Earnings per Share”,
• IAS No. 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,  
• IAS No. 40, “Investment Property”,
• IFRS No.2, “Share-based Payment”,
• IFRS No.3 “Business Combinations”, 
• IFRS No.4 “Insurance Contracts”. 

The withdrawn standard was IAS No. 15, “Information Reflecting the Effects of Changing Prices.”

The revised standards also superseded SIC 1 "Consistency—Different Cost Formulas for
Inventories," SIC 2 "Consistency—Capitalization of Borrowing Costs," SIC 3 "Elimination of
Unrealised Profits and Losses on Transactions with Associates," SIC 5 "Classification of
Financial Instruments—Contingent Settlement Provisions," SIC 6 "Costs of Modifying Existing
Software," SIC 11 "Foreign Exchange—Capitalisation of Losses Resulting from Severe Currency
Devaluations," SIC 14 "Property, Plant and Equipment—Compensation for the Impairment or
Loss of Items," SIC 16 "Share Capital—Reacquired Own Equity Instruments (Treasury Shares),"
SIC 17 "Equity—Costs of an Equity Transaction," SIC 18 "Consistency—Alternative Methods,"
SIC 19 "Reporting Currency—Measurement and Presentation of Financial Statements under IAS
21 and IAS 29," SIC 20 "Equity Accounting Method—Recognition of Losses," SIC 23 "Property,
Plant and Equipment—Major Inspection or Overhaul Costs," SIC 24 "Earnings Per Share—
Financial Instruments that May Be Settled in Shares," SIC 30 "Reporting Currency—Translation
from Measurement Currency to Presentation Currency," and SIC 33 “Consolidation and Equity
Method—Potential Voting Rights and Allocation of Ownership Interest”.

Except for the matters discussed below, the adoption of these revised or new standards is
not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s results of operations, financial position
and cash flows. 

IAS No. 16, as revised, would require annual revision of residual value, useful life and
depreciation method applied to an asset.  The Group has significant amount of fully
depreciated assets.  The Group will reconsider useful life of property, plant and equipment
when applying the revised standard.  The Group is currently in process of assessing the
potential impact this standard may have on useful lives adopted by the Group, and
accordingly, the Group’s results of operations.  Any changes in residual value, useful life and
depreciation method applied to an asset will be accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate in accordance with IAS No. 8. 

On December 16, 2004, an amendment to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" was issued.
Previously, IAS 19 required actuarial gains and losses to be recognized in profit or loss, either
in the period in which they occur or spread over the service lives of the employees. Under the
amendment, entities that at present spread the gains and losses are not required to change

their approach, but are now free to choose to do so and recognize actuarial gains and losses
in full in the period in which they occur, outside profit or loss. The amendment also (a)
specifies how group entities should account for defined benefit group plans in their separate
or individual financial statements and (b) requires additional disclosures.  The amended
standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2006.
The Group is currently evaluating the impact of this amendment on its results of operations,
financial position and cash flows and is in process of developing an implementation strategy. 

On May 27, 2004, IFRIC 1 "Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar
Liabilities" was published. IFRIC 1 contains guidance on accounting for changes in
decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities that have previously been recognized both
as part of the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment under IAS 16 and as a
provision under IAS 37. The interpretation addresses subsequent changes to the amount of
the provision that may arise from (a) a revision in the timing or amount of the estimated
decommissioning or restoration costs or from (b) a change in the current market-based
discount rate. IFRIC 1 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after September 1, 2004.
The Group is currently evaluating the impact of this interpretation on its results of operations,
financial position and cash flows and is in process of developing an implementation strategy.

On November 11, 2004, an amendment to SIC-12 "Consolidation—Special Purpose Entities"
was published. The amendment removes the scope exclusion in SIC-12 for equity
compensation plans. The amendment also amends the scope exclusion in SIC-12 for post-
employment benefit plans to include other long-term employee benefit plans, to ensure
consistency with the requirements of IAS 19. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2005. The Group is currently evaluating the impact of new
standard on its results of operations, financial position and cash flows and is in process of
developing an implementation strategy.

On November 25, 2004, IFRIC 2 "Members' Shares in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments" was released, giving guidance on the classification of members' shares in co-
operative entities either as financial liabilities or as equity. On December 2, 2004, IFRIC 3
"Emission Rights" and IFRIC 4 "Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease" were
released. IFRIC 3 specifies the accounting for companies participating in government
schemes aimed at reducing greenhouse gas emissions. IFRIC 4 gives guidance on
determining whether arrangements that do not take the legal form of a lease should,
nonetheless, be accounted for in accordance with IAS 17 "Leases." On December 16, 2004,
IFRIC 5 "Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds" was issued. IFRIC 5 explains how to treat expected reimbursements
from funds set up to meet the costs of decommissioning plant or equipment or in undertaking
environmental restoration or rehabilitation. IFRIC 2, IFRIC 3 and IFRICs 4 and 5 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005, March 1, 2005 and January 1, 2006,
respectively, with earlier adoption encouraged.  The Group is currently evaluating the impact
of these new interpretations on its results of operations, financial position and cash flows and
is in process of developing an implementation strategy. 

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The net book value of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 was
as follows:

Cable and
Buildings and transmission Construction
site services devices Other in progress Total

Cost 

At January 1, 2004 23,386 122,290 23,266 5,345 174,287 

Additions - - - 4,773 4,773 

Disposals (950) (2,068) (958) (14) (3,990)

Disposal of subsidiaries - (241) (131) (121) (493)

Transfer 71 3,306 2,293 (5,670) - 

At December 31, 2004 22,507 123,287  24,470 4,313 174,577 

Accumulated Depreciation

At January 1, 2004 (15,471) (92,756) (16,475) - (124,702)

Depreciation expense (544) (4,901) (2,053) - (7,498)

Disposals 773 1,957 754 - 3,484 

Disposal of subsidiaries - 66 60 - 126 

At December 31, 2004 (15,242) (95,634) (17,714) - (128,590)

Net book value at December 31, 2004 7,265 27,653 6,756 4,313 45,987 



Cable and
Buildings and  transmission Construction
site services devices Other in progress Total

Cost 

At January 1, 2003 24,012 127,811 23,635 3,872 179,330 

Additions - - - 3,579 3,579 

Additions with acquired subsidiaries 580 - - - 580 

Disposals (1,294) (5,646) (784) (56) (7,780)

Disposal of subsidiaries and write-down 

of property, plant and equipment (580) (551) (291) - (1,422)

Transfer 668 676 706 (2,050) - 

At December 31, 2003 23,386 122,290 23,266 5,345 174,287 

Accumulated Depreciation

At January 1, 2003 (15,823) (92,369) (14,860) - (123,052)

Depreciation –continuing operations (546) (5,353) (2,353) - (8,252)

Depreciation –discontinued operations - - (24) - (24) 

Disposals 898 4,966 659 - 6,523 

Disposal of subsidiaries - - 103 - 103 

At December 31, 2003 (15,471) (92,756) (16,475) - (124,702)

Net book value at December 31, 2003 7,915 29,534 6,791 5,345 49,585 

During 2002, the Company formalized a plan to discontinue using satellite channels beginning
from February 2003. The Company has accordingly revised its estimate of the remaining period
of use of the satellite channels. Depreciation expense of 210 was recognized in the consolidated
statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2003 (2002: 897), net book value of these
assets amounted to nil as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.  Amounts receivable from the lessor
net of allowance for doubtful accounts receivable of 253, amounting to nil (2003:525) are
included in other accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Included in the roll-forward of fixed assets movements for the year ended December 31, 2003
in the line “Disposal of subsidiaries and write-down of property, plant and equipment” is the
amount of (551) representing partial impairment of property, plant and equipment as a result
of discontinuing the leasing, and banking and investing segments (refer to Note 23).

Interest amounting to 161, 123 and 57 was capitalized in property, plant and equipment for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The capitalization rate used to determine the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is 6.1%, 6.3% and 6.9%, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of 2,066 and 2,158 was pledged in
relation to loan agreements entered into by the Group as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively (refer to Note 18). 

8. SUBSIDIARIES

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Company owned 100% of the voting shares of ZAO
Westelcom, a company registered in the Russian Federation.  The main activity of Westelcom
is provision of international traffic transition services.

9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Movements in investments in associates during the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 were as follows:

2004 2003

Beginning of year 2,381 2,635 

Additions 110 - 

Dividends received (74) (13)

Share in income before income taxes included in continuing operations 313 128 

Share in income before income taxes included in discontinued operations - 88 

Share in income taxes included in continuing operations (143) (92)

Share in income taxes included in discontinued operations - 3 

Reclassification to long-term investments (26) - 

Disposal of associates - (368)

Reclassification of investments in ZAO Telecom-center (refer to Notes 13 and 35) (50) - 

End of year 2,511 2,381 
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Total gain from associates presented in the consolidated statements of income is composed
of the following:

2004 2003 2002

Share in income/ (loss) of associates included 

in movements in investments in associates 313 128 (68)

(Loss) /income from GlobalTel (195) 79 - 

Share in income of EDN Sovintel from 1 January 2002 

through the date of disposal - - 382 

Total gain from associates (before tax) 118 207 314 

Total share in income taxes of associates presented in the consolidated statements of income
is composed of the following: 

2004 2003 2002

Share in income taxes of associates included in movements 

in investments in associates 143 92 5 

Share in income taxes of EDN Sovintel from 

1 January 2002 through the date of disposal - - 110 

Total share in income taxes of associates 143 92 115 

Investments in associates as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Voting share 2004 2003
Associate Main activity capital, % Carrying amount Carrying amount

ZAO Telmos Telecommunication services 20 197 177

OAO RTComm.RU Internet services 31 156 -

Golden Telecom, Inc., USA 

(“Golden Telecom”) Telecommunication services 11.08

(2003: 11.19) 2,067 2,066

ZAO Telecom – center 

(refer to Note 13) Telecommunication services 45 - 46

OAO MMTS-9 Telecommunication services 49 60 47

GlobalTel Satellite telecommunications 51 - -

Other Various 31 45

Total investments in associates 2,511 2,381

All associates except for specifically otherwise mentioned are registered in the Russian
Federation. 

The main activity of RTComm.RU is provision of Internet access services to enterprises and
individuals. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, Rostelecom and RTC-Leasing owned
31.09% and 49.76% of voting shares of RTComm.RU, respectively. As a result of losing
control over RTComm.RU, it is now accounted for as an associate. 

In September 2002, as a result of a sale of its 50% interest in EDN Sovintel to Golden
Telecom, Inc. the Company acquired 4,024,067 ordinary shares of the latter (1,786 at average
market quotes at the transaction date).  Ordinary shares of Golden Telecom were valued at
the average of NASDAQ closing quotes two days before and after the measurement date,
which was determined to be September 5, 2002.  Transaction costs amounted to 172.
In connection with this sale, the Company recognized a gain of 1,733, which was included in
income from sale of investments in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2002.  In November 2002, two representatives of Rostelecom have been
elected to the Board of Directors of Golden Telecom.

At the date of exchange, the Group’s management believed that the Group had the ability to
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies of Golden Telecom
through representation on its Board of Directors. Accordingly, investment into Golden Telecom
was accounted for using the equity method in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

The excess of purchase price paid for shares of Golden Telecom over the fair value of
identifiable net assets acquired in amount of 762 was determined to be amortized over the
period of 8 years.  Amortization charge of 95, 95 and 32 reduced gain from associates (before
tax) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The unamortized
part of 540 and 635 was included in carrying amount of investment in Golden Telecom as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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During 2003 and 2004, as a result of a number of transactions initiated by the shareholders
of Golden Telecom, the Company’s share in the voting stock of Golden Telecom was diluted
by 3.82%, from 14.9% as of December 31, 2002 to 11.08% as of December 31, 2004.
The dilution of interest was accounted for as sale of interest in the associate. Loss of 15 and
gain of 2 resulting from the dilution of interest were included in gain from associates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Management performed the analysis of the changes in the
shareholders’ structure of Golden Telecom during 2003 and 2004, and concluded that
Rostelecom continued to exercise significant influence over Golden Telecom. Subsequent
to the year end, Golden Telecom declared and paid dividends for the first quarter of 2005
of which 22 relate to Rostelecom.

The Group owns 51% of the ordinary shares of GlobalTel, a Russian closed joint stock
company.  GlobalTel was created in 1996 to provide access to a US-based global mobile
satellite telephone network.  Since the time of its launch, the global satellite network has
experienced technical problems and low subscriber interest, as the result of which GlobalTel
has only recently developed its operations beyond the development stage.  The US owner of
the satellite network also owns the remaining 49% of GlobalTel.  As of December 31, 2004
and 2003, the charter of GlobalTel, its by-laws and the way GlobalTel historically conducted
its operations provide for substantive participation of both shareholders in the economic
activities of GlobalTel.  The minority shareholder had effective veto rights that would prevent
the Group from causing GlobalTel to take an action that is significant in the ordinary course of
its business.  Because effective control of GlobalTel did not rest with the Group, management
accounts for the investment in GlobalTel under the equity method.  The Group did not
recognize its share in losses of GlobalTel in 2004, 2003 and 2002 as the accumulated share in
losses of GlobalTel exceeded the investment of the Group in GlobalTel.  Loans and other
accounts receivable from GlobalTel are fully provided for as loss from GlobalTel.  Any receipts
from GlobalTel in respect of these are recognized as gain from associates in the period they
are received.  In 2005, the charter of GlobalTel has been changed, as described in Note 35.

The carrying amount of investments in associates in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements is equal to the Group’s share of underlying equity in the net assets of investee
companies, including goodwill, if any. All associates have a December 31 year-end.

Accounting policies of associates may not comply with accounting policies used by the
Group in preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  In the opinion
of management, differences in accounting policies of associates do not materially affect the
identification of the Group’s share in income (loss) of associates.

In August 2004 the Board of Directors of Rostelecom approved sale of investments in ZAO
Telecom-center. Accordingly, these investments were reclassified from long-term to short-
term investments as of December 31, 2004 (refer to Note 13). The sale took place in March
2005 (refer to Note 35).

In 2005 the Group sold its investments in ZAO Telmos (refer to Note 35).

10. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Long-term financial investments are Ruble denominated and as of December 31, 2004 and
2003 comprised the following:

2004 2003

Notes receivable 94 29

Other long-term financial investments 170 97

Total long-term financial investments 264 126

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003 other long-term financial investments include investment
in OAO Sberbank of Russia of 107 and 60, respectively, which are stated at fair value.

11. GOODWILL 

Goodwill was recognized in connection with acquisition of Westelcom in 2002 and represents
the excess of the purchase price paid over fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. 

Changes in amounts of goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were
as follows:

Negative Negative 
goodwill, goodwill, 

short-term long-term
Goodwill portion portion

Balance as of December 31, 2002 39 (471) (240)

Additions due to acquisition of subsidiaries 157 - -

Additions due to purchase of minority interest 4 - -

Reclassification of negative goodwill - (51) 51 

Amortization of negative goodwill due 

to disposal of investments - 455 -

Amortization (14) 51 -

Disposal of subsidiaries (refer to Note 23) (169) 16 189 

Balance as of December 31, 2003 17 - - 

Amortization (8) - - 

Balance as of December 31, 2004 9 - - 

12. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 comprised the following:

2003, 
as restated 

2004 (see Note 2)

Trade accounts receivable 5,303 6,474 

Less: allowance for doubtful trade accounts receivable (1,774) (2,406)

Trade accounts receivable, net 3,529 4,068 

Prepayments 396 425 

Prepaid taxes 1,503 1,940 

Other accounts receivable 695 931 

Less: allowance for doubtful other accounts receivable (510) (283)

Other accounts receivable, net 2,084 3,013 

Total accounts receivable, net 5,613 7,081 

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, include amounts totaling
450 (2003: 761) due from foreign telecommunications operators which are denominated in
foreign currencies, principally represented by Special Drawing Rights (“SDR”) and US dollars,
and amounts totaling 1,511 (2003: 1,739) due from local telephone operators.  As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the carrying value of trade accounts receivable approximated
their fair value.

The following table summarizes the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002

Balance, beginning of year 2,689 2,443 1,825 

Impact of inflation on opening balance - - (240)

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable – continuing operations 369 337 874 

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable – discontinued operations - 2 (11)

Accounts receivable written-off (774) (93) (5)

Balance, end of year 2,284 2,689 2,443  
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13. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments include investments available-for-sale, which are stated at fair value,
and short-term deposits and deposit certificates which are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Short-term investments comprised the following as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003

VEB bonds (USD denominated) 195 199

Liquid bills of exchange 5,247 1,855 

Short-term deposits and deposit certificates 2,658 700

Investments in ZAO Telecom-center (refer to Note 9) 50 -

Other - 1

Total short-term investments 8,150 2,755

Fair value of investments, which are traded on active markets, is based on the market quotes
for such investments.  Fair value of investments, which are not traded on active market, is
based on estimated discounted future cash flows.  The discount rate is identified individually
for each company and is based on the weighted average cost of capital. 

Transactions with financial instruments are recognized using settlement date accounting.
Assets are recognized on the day they are transferred to the Group and derecognized on the
day that they are transferred by the Group.

Vnesheconombank (VEB) bonds are bearer securities guaranteed by the Ministry of Finance
of Russia, and are commonly referred to as “MinFin Bonds”.  The bonds carry an annual
coupon interest rate of 3%. The maturity dates of bonds are within 2007 – 2008 .
Vnesheconombank bonds are stated at market value based on quotations obtained from the
over the counter market.

The Group invests temporarily available funds in bills of exchange issued by various Russian
companies maturing within 12 months after the balance sheet date or with no fixed maturity,
which the Group plans to sell during the next year. The bills of exchange bear interest in the
range from 5.65% to 14.3% and are denominated in Rubles, as well as in foreign currencies.
As of December 31, 2004 approximately 40% (2003:  26%) of the Group’s total liquid bills of
exchange are denominated in foreign currencies, represented by US dollars. The Group uses
bills of exchange as a financial instrument primarily for the purpose of receiving financial
income.

Liquid bills of exchange include promissory notes issued by RTC-Leasing of 2,098 (2003:
459), of which 803 are secured with proceeds from lease agreements, promissory notes
issued by OAO Svyazbank (subsidiary of RTC-Leasing) of 590 (2003: 7) and promissory notes
issued by Russian Industrial Bank (subsidiary of RTC-Leasing) of 795 (2003: nil). Short-term
deposits include deposits in OAO Svyazbank of 900 (2003: nil), deposits in Russian Industrial
Bank of 242 (2003: nil), and deposits in ZAO Severozapandny Telecombank (subsidiary of
RTC-Leasing) of 250 (2003: nil). Refer to Note 14 for cash held in these banks. Management
of the Company is constantly monitoring financial position and performance of RTC-Leasing
group and believes that amounts invested in promissory notes, cash and short-term deposits
are fully recoverable.

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 included cash on hand and at
bank accounts as follows:

2004 2003

Cash on hand 1 2

Cash at bank – Rubles 379 1,736

Cash at bank – Foreign currencies 53 236

Short term deposits – Rubles 752 405

Short-term deposits – Foreign currencies 66 147

Other 4 3

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,255 2,529

As of December 31, 2004, cash at bank in foreign currencies included amounts of 32 (2003:
105) held in escrow accounts on behalf of providers of loans to the Company.

Cash at bank denominated in Rubles include cash held in Russian Industrial bank of 7 (2003:
561) and cash held in OAO Svyazbank of 8 (2003: nil). Cash at bank denominated in foreign
currencies include cash held in Russian Industrial Bank of 1 (2003: 37). Short-term deposits
denominated in Rubles include cash held in Russian Industrial Bank of 300 (2003: 147).

15. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 comprised
1,634,026,541 ordinary shares and 242,832,000 non-redeemable preferred shares.  The par
value of both ordinary and preferred shares amounted to Rbl 0.0025 per share. 

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the issued and outstanding share capital was as follows:

Number of shares Nominal value Carrying amount

Ordinary Shares, Rbl 0.0025 par value 728,696,320 1.822 75

Preferred Shares, Rbl 0.0025 par value 242,831,469 0.607 25

Total 971,527,789 2.429 100

There were no transactions with own shares during 2004, 2003 and 2002.  

The Board of Directors of Rostelecom is authorized under its Charter to issue additional
ordinary shares up to the total of the authorized share capital without further approval of
shareholders.

The nominal share capital of the Company recorded on its incorporation has been indexed, to
account for the effects of inflation from that date through December 31, 2002. The share
capital in the Russian statutory accounts at December 31, 2004 and 2003 amounted to
2,428,819 nominal Rubles. 

Ordinary shares carry voting rights with no guarantee of dividends.  

Preferred shares have priority over ordinary shares in the event of liquidation but carry no
voting rights except on resolutions regarding liquidation or reorganization of the Company,
changes to dividend levels of preferred shares, or the issuance of additional preferred stock.
Such resolutions require two-thirds approval of preferred shareholders. The preferred shares
have no rights of redemption or conversion. 

Preferred shares carry dividends amounting to the higher of 10% of the net income after
taxation of the Company as reported in the Russian statutory accounts divided by the
number of preferred shares and the dividends paid on one ordinary share.  If the holders of
preferred shares receive dividends of less than 10% of the net income after taxation as
reported in the Russian statutory accounts, no dividends to the holders of ordinary shares are
declared. Owners of preferred shares have the right to participate in and vote on all issues
within the competence of general meetings following the annual general meeting at which a
decision not to pay (or to pay partly) dividends on preferred shares has been taken.

In a case of liquidation, the property remaining after settlement with creditors, payment of
preferred dividends and redemption of the par value of preferred shares is distributed among
preferred and ordinary shareholders proportionately to number of owned shares. 

Accordingly, the Company’s preferred shares are considered participating equity instruments
for the purpose of earnings per share calculations (refer to Note 27).

Distributable earnings of all entities included in the Group are limited to their respective
retained earnings, as mandated by statutory accounting rules. Statutory retained earnings of
the Company as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 amounted to 20,670 and 14,452,
respectively.
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Treasury Shares

In accordance with the Company’s Charter, Rostelecom is permitted to repurchase, on the
open market, ordinary and preferred shares as long as 90% of the nominal value of its issued
Charter Capital remains in circulation. Repurchased shares must either be sold or cancelled
within one year of being purchased. There were no treasury shares as of December 31, 2004
and 2003.

Dividends

Dividends payable to holders of preferred and ordinary shares in respect of the years ending
December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002

Dividend – preferred shares 790 310

Dividend – ordinary shares 640 396

1,430 706

Rbl Rbl

Dividend per preferred share 3.25 1.27

Dividend per ordinary share 0.88 0.54

16. MINORITY INTEREST

2004 2003 2002

At beginning of year 191 2,825 1,929 

Minority interest in net assets of acquired subsidiaries - - 224 

Minority interest in net income/ (loss) of subsidiaries 

– continuing operations - 70 (82)

Minority interest in net income of subsidiaries – 

discontinued operations (refer to Note 23) - 650 1,153 

Minority effect of preferred shares  issued by subsidiary - - - 

Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries - (29) (129)

Purchase of minority interest - (3) (79)

Re-purchase of own preferred shares by a subsidiary - - (191)

Minority interest in disposed subsidiaries (refer to Note 23)   - (3,322) - 

Minority interest in disposed subsidiary (RTComm.RU)

(refer to Note 9) (191) - - 

At the end of year - 191 2,825 

17. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following as of December 31, 2004
and 2003:

2003, 
as restated 

2004 (see Note 2)

Trade accounts payable 2,932 3,122 

Accrued expenses 325 156 

Compensation related accruals 628 361 

Dividends payable 120 49 

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,005 3,688 

As of December 31, 2004, trade accounts payable included amounts totaling 1,404, which
are denominated in foreign currencies, principally represented by Special Drawing Rights and
US Dollars (2003: 1,326). 

As of December 31, 2004, trade accounts payable include promissory notes issued to IBM
Corporation according to agreement on implementation of a new billing system, estimated
cost of which is USD 90 million. Total amortized cost of issued promissory notes equals to
1,059, of which 706 are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and 353 are
included in non-current accounts payable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
as of December 31, 2004. The promissory notes bear interest of 6%.

Trade accounts payable as of December 31, 2003 included accounts payable to RTC-Leasing
of 520, which were repaid in 2004 (refer to Note 23).

18. INTEREST BEARING LOANS

The interest bearing loans as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Maturity 2004 2003

Current portion of interest bearing loans 1,107 1,932

Between one to two years 570 1,088

Between two to three years 109 518

Between three to four years 72 35

Between four to five years 26 -

Non-current portion of interest bearing loans 777 1,641

Total interest bearing loans 1,884 3,573

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, interest bearing loans, which are mostly denominated in
foreign currencies, were as follows:

Note 2004 2003

US Dollars (US$) (а) 1,457 2,639

Japanese Yen (JPY) (b) 188 245

EURO (c) 239 34

Foreign currency denominated loans 1,884 2,918

Russian Ruble denominated loans (d) - 655

Total interest bearing loans 1,884 3,573

As of December 31, 2004, the Group had the following loans outstanding:

a) This includes the following amounts:

• US$ 48.57 million (1,348) on promissory notes issued to Alfa-bank in 2003. In June 2003,
according to the Government decision #221 dated April 16, 2003, Rostelecom's overdue
debt (with a principal of 11,601 million Japanese Yen (2,976 at the exchange rate as of June
30, 2003) and accrued interest of 20) payable to Vnesheconombank, acting as an agent of
the Ministry of Finance of Russian Federation, was restructured by converting it into
promissory notes issued to Alfa-Bank. Upon conversion, the carrying amount of debt
amounted to US$ 98.6 (2,991 at the exchange rate as of June 30, 2003). As a result of
conversion, Rostelecom's principal debt to the Ministry of Finance and interest accrued
thereon were extinguished in full. Upon extinguishment of debt to the Ministry of Finance,
the Company ceased to be in technical default in respect of this debt.  According to the
Ministry of Finance's resolution dated September 16, 2003, fines and penalties of 2,837
million Japanese Yen (749 at the exchange rate as of date of transaction) due from
Rostelecom were forgiven and written off. In connection with this transaction a gain of 752
was recognized and included in other non-operating income in the consolidated statement
of income for the year ended December 31, 2003 (refer to Note 24). The promissory notes
to Alfa-Bank are repayable within 36 months in six semi-annual installments, beginning from
December 2003, and bear interest of 5.94% per annum. Promissory notes amounting to
925 were included in the current portion of interest bearing loans. 

• US$ 2.66 million (74) within a credit agreement between Rostelecom and Japanese Bank for
International Cooperation (JBIC) entered into in March 2004 to finance the purchase of
equipment for the reconstruction of the Tyumen-Surgut microwave line. Maximum amount
of the credit line is US$ 2.66 million, of which US$ 1.60 million (Tranche A) is provided by
JBIC and US$ 1.06 million (Tranche B) is provided by Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation, a Japanese commercial bank. Tranche A and Tranche B bear interest of 4.67%
and LIBOR plus 0.55%, respectively. The loan is repayable in semi-annual installments up
to October, 2008. 18 relates to the current portion.

• US$ 1.27 million (35) on a credit agreement between Rostelecom and Sumitomo Corporation
entered into in March 1997. The loan is secured by the related equipment with carrying value
of 1,210 and by cash balances deposited in designated escrow accounts, and is repayable in
quarterly installments with the final payment due not later than July 2005. Interest is payable
at LIBOR plus 3.2%. The purpose of the loan is financing of construction of fiber optic cable
line Novosibirsk – Khabarovsk.  The total amount is included in current portion.
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b) This includes the following amounts:

• JPY 628.66 million (168) within a credit line provided by Vneshtorgbank with maximum
amount of JPY 880.13 million open through February 25, 2005. The facility bears annual
interest rate of 5.75%. To secure the debt, the Company pledged its telecommunication
equipment with carrying value of 242. The final payment date on this credit line is to be not
later than February 26, 2007. 67 relates to the current portion.

• JPY 74.99 million (20) within a credit line provided by Vneshtorgbank with maximum amount
of JPY 105 million open through February 25, 2005. The facility bears annual interest rate of
5.75%. To secure the debt, the Company pledged its telecommunication equipment with
carrying value of 43. The final payment date on this credit line is to be not later than
February 26, 2007. 8 relates to the current portion.

c) This includes the following: 

• EURO 6.33 million (239) on a credit agreement between Rostelecom and ING BHF-BANK
entered into in April 2004.  Total amount of the credit line is EURO 7 million, payable up to
2009 in equal semi-annual installments and bearing interest of EURIBOR plus 0.875% per
annum.  The loan was taken for the purchase of equipment to be used in re-construction of
fiber optic cable line Novosibirsk – Khabarovsk. 53 relates to the current portion.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the weighted average interest rates of loans were 6.1%
and 6.3%, respectively.  Under IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, loans should be reflected in the financial statements at amortized cost, i.e. the
amount at which they were measured at initial recognition less principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount. The carrying amount of interest bearing loans equals their amortized cost.

The Group does not utilize financial instruments to hedge against its exposure to fluctuations
in interest and foreign exchange rates.

In April 2004 the Company settled 695 on a credit agreement, which as of December 31,
2003 was signed between Rostelecom and RTDC. During 2004, the loan has been assigned
from RTDC to other parties. The amount paid to the final beneficiary equals to the present
value of the loan as of the date of settlement. Therefore, no gain or loss was recognized in
the consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2004.

There are no specific affirmative or negative covenants (including financial covenants) under
the existing loan agreements. There were no loans in default as of December 31, 2004. 

19. INCOME TAXES

The components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the respective movements during 2004, were as follows:

December 31, Movement December 31,
2003 during the year 2004

Tax effects of future tax deductible items: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 187 (187) - 

Accounts receivable 369 105 474 

Investment valuation difference 44 (10) 34 

Other 3 6 9 

Gross deferred tax asset 603 (86) 517 

Property, plant and equipment, net 7,690 (1,487) 6,203 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 268 268 

Leasing arrangements 395 (395) - 

Gross deferred tax liability 8,085 (1,614) 6,471 

Net deferred tax liability 7,482 (1,528) 5,954 

Differences between IFRS and statutory taxation and reporting regulations give rise to certain
temporary differences between the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities for financial
reporting and profits tax purposes.  The tax effect of these temporary differences is recorded
at the rate of 24% (investment valuation – at 6% - 15%).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities relate to the income taxes levied by the same fiscal authority on
the same taxable entity.  

Income taxes payable and receivable as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

2004 2003

Income tax payable - (118)

Income tax receivable 238 433 

Income taxes payable and receivable are included in taxes payable and other accounts
receivable, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

20. REVENUE

Revenue comprised the following for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2003, 2002,
as restated as restated 

2004 (see Note 2) (see Note 2)

Revenue from local operators

Telephone - international 6,160 5,171 5,025

Telephone - national 13, 411 8,669 5,859

Other income from local operators 3,077 1,952 1,838

22,648 15,792 12,722

Revenue from subscribers

Telephone - international 2,900 3,027 3,462

Telephone - national 3,886 3,678 3,513

Internet access - 1,060 849

Rent of telecommunication channels to subscribers 1,352 853 712

Television and radio transmission 602 584 546

Cellular services - 117 89

8,740 9,319 9,171

Revenue from foreign operators

Telephone 4,041 3,871 4,250

Telex, telegraph and other 327 431 622

Rent of telecommunication channels 192 181 228

4,560 4,483 5,100

Other revenue 1,370 1,673 860

Total revenue 37,318 31,267 27,853

Effective August 1, 2003, the Anti-Monopoly Ministry abolished the use of the Integral
Settlement Rate (“ISR”) for settlements between Rostelecom and other domestic operators.
Under the new settlements system, Rostelecom began to bill other operators originating
domestic long-distance (“DLD”) calls using the Linear Settlement Rate (“LSR”) regulated by
the Anti-Monopoly Ministry of the Russian Federation and to pay to other operators
terminating the calls the termination fee calculated using the Termination Settlement Rate
(“TSR”) also regulated by the Anti-Monopoly Ministry.

Prior to August 1, 2003, revenues and expenses related to DLD calls were recognized on the
basis of ISR, i.e. on the net basis. The introduction of the new settlements system represents
a change in business practice resulting in new accounting for changed practice. The pro-
forma information calculated on the basis of the new settlement system as if it was applied
effective January 1, 2002 is presented below.
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2003 2002
Pro-forma Pro-forma 

As reported above (unaudited) As reported above (unaudited)

Revenue from local operators: telephone - national 8,669 12,396 5,859 11,159 

Charges by network operators - national (4,331) (8,058) (1,707) (7,007)

In 2005 new regulations in the national telecommunication sector were put in force (refer to
Note 31).

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In 2002 and the most part of 2003, the Group operated in three industry segments:
Telecommunications, Leasing and Banking and investing. The net income of these segments
is presented below: 

Banking 
Telecommunications Leasing and Investing

2004 4,298 -  - 

2003 3,507 (3,036) (73)

2002 2,990 (2,776) 525 

As a result of divestiture of business of RTC-Leasing and discontinuance of the leasing,
banking and investing segments (refer to Note 23), effective December 1, 2003 the Group
operates in one industry segment, being the provision of intercity and international
telecommunication services in the Russian Federation. The results of this segment and assets
and liabilities as of December 31, 2004 are presented in the consolidated statements of
income and the consolidated balances sheet, respectively. 

The aggregate leasing and banking and investing segments’ results, assets and liabilities as
of December 1, 2003 are presented in Note 23.

An analysis of revenue by service type is disclosed in Note 20.  A geographical analysis of
revenue by the country or region of the customer for the years ending December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 is as follows:

Western Eastern 
Russia CIS USA Europe Europe Others Total

2004 32,720 2,667 254 1,004 192 481 37,318

2003 26,784 2,926 220 862 252 223 31,267

2002 22,753 2,846 403 881 240 730 27,853

Leasing and banking and investing segments’ revenue was principally earned in Russia.  

The Group had no individual customers, other than the Government of the Russian
Federation and its related parties (see Note 29), that accounted for greater than 10% of its
revenue during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. 

Substantially all of the Group assets are located within the territory of the Russian Federation.

22. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER COSTS (NET)

Administration and other costs consisted of the following for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002

Administration costs 686 1,002 1,375 

Advertising and similar costs 162 132 58 

Office maintenance 969 882 741 

Utilities and similar services 533 490 385 

Consulting and similar services 208 261 97 

Insurance 377 338 2 

Extinguishment of liabilities (428) - - 

Other 551 677 678 

Total administration and other costs 3,058 3,782 3,336 

Extinguishment of liabilities represents a previously recorded liability for which there is no
longer a legal obligation. The effect of the extinguishment has been recorded in administration
and other costs as this is where it originally has been recorded. 

23. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As part of management’s efforts to concentrate on the Company’s core business segment
and as part of the Company’s drive to decrease total debt, the Company discontinued two of
its components represented by the leasing and banking and investing business segments.
The operations in these business segments were conducted through RTC-Leasing and its
subsidiaries. Effective December 1, 2003, the Company effectively transferred control over
these businesses to a third party.

The results of operations and loss on discontinuance of the above mentioned segments of
3,109, net of income tax expense of 343, was included in the accompanying consolidated
statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2003 and reported in discontinued
operations.

The discontinuance of the leasing and banking and investing business segments was
executed in a series of transactions that constituted an exchange, involving cash
consideration, by the Company of its controlling interest in RTC-Leasing to an additional
interest in certain items of telecommunications equipment previously owned by RTC-Leasing.
To execute this the following actions were undertaken.

On October 24 and 27, 2003, Rostelecom sold all of its shares in RTC-Leasing to the third
party for 740.

On October 2, 2003 and on December 26, 2003, Rostelecom and RTC-Leasing signed
agreements restructuring the future lease payments of Rostelecom to RTC-Leasing of 6,018,
including VAT of 918. Before the restructuring, the liabilities were payable through 2012.  As a
result of the restructurings, 3,705 became due on January 28, 2004, and 2,313 became due
on January 30, 2034.

On January 29, 2004, Rostelecom and RTC-Leasing signed an agreement replacing the
restructured lease obligation of 2,313 due in 2034 with a loan payable by Rostelecom to RTC-
Leasing in 2038. 

On February 12, 2004, Westelcom and RTC-Leasing executed a loan assignment agreement
under which Westelcom purchased from RTC-Leasing all rights to the loan for 368, including
VAT of 57.

Before December 31, 2003, Rostelecom effectively paid to RTC-Leasing the amount of 3,520
by purchasing promissory notes issued by RTC-Leasing.  The amount due under the
promissory notes was offset against the restructured lease obligation due on January 28,
2004. In January and April 2004 the Group extinguished the remaining part of the restructured
lease obligation for a cash payment of 520 in total.

The results of operations and cash flows of RTC-Leasing were included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements through December 1, 2003. 

The accompanying statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
include as discontinued operations the post-tax results of operations of the discontinued
business segments, which comprised the following:

2003 2002

Loss before tax and minority interest (761) (508)

Minority interest in the results of discontinued operations (650) (1,153)

Loss recognized on disposal (804) - 

Write-down of carrying amount of property, plant and equipment (551) - 

Income tax expense (343) (590)

Net loss from the discontinued operations (3,109) (2,251)

The write-down of property, plant and equipment in the amount of 551 represents the
difference between the carrying amount of the telecommunication equipment, as restated for
hyperinflation (refer to Note 5), and its respective fair value determined by the reference to the
replacement cost of this equipment.
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The net cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 pertaining to the
discontinued business segments as reported in the accompanying consolidated statements
of cash flows, were as follows:

2003 2002

Cash flows from the discontinued operations:

Net cash used in operating activities (7,362) (5,858)

Net cash (used in) /provided by investing activities (2,380) 596 

Net cash provided by financing activities 7,011 2,062 

24. OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME, NET

Other non-operating income consisted of the following for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments 43 69 41 

Fair value of contributions received - - 103 

Gain on extinguishment of loans payable (refer to Note 18) - 752 230 

Reversal of previously recognized impairment 53 316 - 

Other non-operating gain /(loss), net 19 82 (74)

Total other non-operating income, net 115 1,219 300 

In October 2002, the Company received telecommunication equipment from a company,
which is not a related party, free of charge.  Fair value of the equipment was estimated as
equal to 103.  The Group recognized fair value of the contribution received in other non-
operating income, since the contribution was unconditional and the equipment could be
utilized to generate future revenue.

25. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 were as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Current tax charge 2,892 2,002 2,363 

Deferred tax benefit (Note 19) (1,528) (1,763) (1,511)

Share in income taxes of associates (Note 9) 143 92 115 

Income tax expense 1,507 331 967 

The reconciliation of the theoretical amount that would arise using the Russian statutory rate
of 24% to the total actual income tax was as follows for the years ending December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002

Income tax expense at statutory rate 1,393 938 930 

Non-temporary elements of monetary loss - - 1,439 

Effect of lease arrangements between Rostelecom and RTC-Leasing - (620) (931)

Non-deductible expenses 114 261 973 

Other non-temporary differences - (248) - 

Inflation effect on deferred tax balance at beginning of year - - (1,444)

Income tax expense 1,507 331 967 

Other non-deductible expenses comprise various costs that are non-deductible for Russian
profits tax purposes, including depreciation of certain property, plant and equipment, certain
employee costs, promotional and sponsorship expenditures, travel expenditures in excess of
certain statutory allowances and other expenses.

26. EMPLOYEES

The numbers of employees of the Group was equal to 25,285 as at December 31, 2004
(2003: 26,742). 

The Group makes payments to the Government pension fund for its employees. Such
contributions are calculated using regressive scale and are charged to expense when incurred
during the employee’s service period.

The Company participates in the non-state Joint Participation Program which is a pension
plan with defined contributions.  To participate in the program, individuals should be full-time
employees of the Company and should enter into non-state pension insurance agreement
with NPF “Telecom-Soyuz”, which is the successor of NPF “Rostelecom-Garantiya”. Total
expenses of the Group under this program amounted to 13 during the year ended December
31, 2004 (2003: 18, 2002: 22) and are included in wages, salaries, other benefits and payroll
taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

The Company also operates a defined benefit pension scheme covering a large number of its
employees, which require contributions to be made to NPF “Telecom-Soyuz”. Total expenses
of the Group under these defined benefit schemes amounted to 28 during the year ended
December 31, 2004 (2003: 73, 2002: 46) and are included in wages, salaries, other benefits
and payroll taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.  

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per preferred and ordinary share is presented
below (earnings per share data is stated in Rubles): 

2003 2002 

(as restated, (as restated, 
2004 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Net income from continuing operations 4,298 3,507 2,990

Net loss from discontinued operations - (3,109) (2,251)

Total net income 4,298 398 739

Preferred Ordinary Preferred Ordinary Preferred Ordinary
shares shares shares shares shares shares

Weighted average number 

of shares outstanding 242,831,469 728,696,320 242,831,469 728,696,320 242,831,469 728,696,320

Earnings per share

– continuing  operations 4.42 4.42 3.61 3.61 3.08 3.08 

Losses per share – 

discontinued operations - - (3.20) (3.20) (2.32) (2.32)

Total earnings per share 4.42 4.42 0.41 0.41 0.76 0.76 

The calculation of earnings per share is based on net profit for the period divided by the
weighted average number of preferred and ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Dividends are fully allocated to continuing operations.

There are no potentially dilutive securities, therefore, diluted earnings per share equal basic
earnings per share. 

28. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best
evidenced by a quoted market price. 

For monetary assets and liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate their fair value and
balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at appropriate
period end exchange rates. 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their respective fair values
due to their short-term nature and negligible credit losses. 
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Government and OAO Svyazinvest as a shareholder

As indicated in Note 1, the immediate parent company of the Company is OAO Svyazinvest
which holds 50.67% of the voting capital of the Company, and its representatives comprise a
majority of the Board of Directors. The Government of the Russian Federation in turn holds
75% less one share of the voting capital of OAO Svyazinvest and, therefore, ultimately
controls the Company. It is a matter of the Government policy to retain a controlling stake in
sectors of the economy, such as telecommunications, that it views as strategic.

In the past, a number of Government statements have indicated that it is considering
restructuring the telecommunications sector controlled by OAO Svyazinvest. Refer to Note 31
for regulatory actions announced so far.

(b) Interest of the Government in the telecommunications sector 
in the Russian Federation and the protection of that interest

Effective telecommunications and data transmission are of great importance to Russia
for various reasons, including economic, social, strategic and national security considerations.
The Government has exercised and may be expected to exercise significant influence
over the operations of the telecommunications sector and consequently, the Group.
The Government, acting through the Federal Tariff Agency, has the general authority to
regulate domestic tariffs, and does regulate tariffs. The Ministry of Information Technologies
and Telecommunications of the Russian Federation has control over the licensing of providers
of telecommunications services.  

(с) Transactions with the Svyazinvest Group

The Svyazinvest Group uses the Group’s network to carry traffic between its regional and
other operators and to and from these regional operators, and to and from international
operators.  

The Group uses the regional networks of the Svyazinvest Group to complete calls and other
traffic, including that originating from its direct subscribers in the city of Moscow. 

Tariffs for services between the Company and the Svyazinvest Group are materially affected
with governmental regulation as disclosed in paragraph (b) of this note.

The Group also consumes design services from certain companies of the Svyazinvest Group
which are included in 2004 in additions of property, plant and equipment in amount of 19
(2003: 37).

The Group makes certain contributions to non-for-profit organizations which are companies of
the Svyazinvest Group.

The Group makes contributions to the non-state pension fund which provides the Company’s
employees with a number of post-employment benefits (refer to Note 26). OAO Svyazinvest
executes significant influence over the operations of the fund.

The amounts of revenue and expenses relating to the transactions with the Svyazinvest
Group were as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Revenue 16,987 11,944 9,342 

Lease revenue (included in loss from discontinued operations) - 472 18 

Charges by network operators - national (6,362) (2,930) (264)

Administration and other costs - - (160)

Contributions to non-for-profit organizations

(included in administration and other costs) (244) (54) (94) 

Contributions in pension fund included in wages, salaries, 

other benefit and payroll taxes (77) (148) (85)

In addition, OAO Svyazinvest participates in the dividends declared by the Company,
commensurate with its shareholding. 

The amounts of receivables and payables due from and to the Svyazinvest Group were as follows:
2004 2003

Short-term investments 5 16 

Accounts receivable, net 1,218 1,124 

Accounts payable (302) (192)

Payable to pension fund (included in compensation related accruals) (184) (206)

(d) Transactions with the Government

Other state bodies (“Budget Organizations”), such as the Ministry of Defense and entities
affiliated to the Government, primarily state controlled TV and radio companies, use the
Group’s network to carry communications traffic and to broadcast across the country.
In some cases, the service is in the nature of rent of telecommunication channels for which
the Group charges below market rates.

The Company made certain contributions to State Research and Development Funds. 

The amounts of revenue and expenses relating to the transactions with the Government were
as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Revenue 2,064 1,388 1,211 

Contributions to State Research and Development Fund 

(included in administration and other costs) - (65) (102)

The amounts of receivables and payables due from and to such organizations were as
follows:

2004 2003

Accounts receivable, net 286 651 

Accounts payable (24) (22)

(e) Transactions with investees

The Group is also involved in various telecommunication services with entities and companies
in which it has investments, including associates over which it exerts significant influence.  

A summary of these transactions is as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Revenue 1,404 796 666 

Charges by network operators – national (262) (126) (26)

Amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets relating to the operations with these
entities were as follows:

2004 2003

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (29) (44)

Accounts receivable, net 235 143 

(f) Directors’ remuneration

During the year the Board of Directors consisted of the following members:

Until June 26, 2004 Until December 31, 2004

Yashin V.N. Yashin V.N.

Avdiyants S.P. Avdiyants S.P.

Belov V.Y. Belov V.Y.

Yemelianov N.P. Degtyarev V.V.

Kuznetsov S.I.  Erokhin D.E.  

Lopatin A.V. Panchenko S.N.

Panchenko S.N. Polischuk V.A.

Polischuk V.A. Ragozina I.M.  

Ragozina I.M.  Slipenchuk M.V.

Slipenchuk M.V. Finger G.M. 

Yurchenko E.V. Yurchenko E.V.

In 2004, the total remuneration of the directors amounted to 22 (2003: 39, 2002: 21).
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(g) Other related party transactions

In 2004 and 2003 the Company acquired promissory notes of OAO Svyazbank for 1,333 and
7, respectively, and settled partially the promissory notes for 750 and nil, respectively. Net
income from sale of promissory notes of OAO Svyazbank amounted to 12 (2003: nil) and was
included in interest income in the accompanying consolidated statement of income. Also refer
to Note 13. Certain directors of the Company and OAO Svyazinvest are directors of
OAO Svyazbank.

In June-August 2003, in order to redeem its liability to Vietnam Telecom, the Company paid
to OAO Svyazbank, acting in the capacity of the agent of an unrelated party, USD 15.1 million
(462 at the exchange rates at the dates of settlement). 

In 2003 the Company purchased software from ZAO Peter-Service, net book value of which
amounted to 142. Also during 2004 and 2003 the Company incurred additional expenses in
relation to this software in amount of 26 and 11, respectively, which were included in
administration and other costs in the accompanying statements of income. Prepayments
made to ZAO Peter-Service included in the accompanying balance sheet amounted to 11 and
27 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Certain directors of the Company are
directors of the company that controls ZAO Peter-Service.

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital expenditure program approved by the Board of Directors for the year
ending December 31, 2005 projects capital expenditures of 7,283. 

31. CONTINGENCIES

a) Taxation 

Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and
changes, which can occur frequently.  Management's interpretation of such legislation as
applied to the transactions and activity of the Group may be challenged by the relevant
federal and regional authorities.  Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that
the tax authorities are taking a more assertive position in its interpretation of the legislation
and assessments and as a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not
been challenged in the past may be challenged.  As such, significant additional taxes,
penalties and interest may be assessed. It is not practical to determine the amount of
unasserted claims that may manifest, if any, or the likelihood of any unfavorable outcome.
Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar
years preceding the year of review.  Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer
periods.

As of December 31, 2004 management believes that its interpretation of the relevant
legislation is appropriate and that it is probable that the Group's tax, currency and customs
positions will be sustained.

As a result of the comprehensive tax inspection covering the periods of 1999, 2000 and 2001,
the Ministry of Taxes and Levies of the Russian Federation assessed 2,488 of additional
taxes, including fines and penalties payable by Rostelecom. The Group prevailed in court.
In November 2004, the Supreme Arbitrary Court of the Russian Federation confirmed the
Group’s tax positions, thus the assessment of the Ministry of Taxes and Levies of the Russian
Federation was rejected and became void. No amounts related to this issue were accrued by
the Group as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. 

b) Legal proceedings

The Group is subject to a number of proceedings arising in the course of the normal conduct
of its business. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the results of operations or the financial position of the
Company or the Group.

In 2003, the Audit Chamber of the Russian Federation completed the inspection of
Svyazinvest and its subsidiaries, including the Company. No penalties were imposed on the
Company as a result of the inspection.

c) Licenses

Substantially all of the Company’s revenues are derived from operations conducted pursuant
to licenses granted by the Russian Government. These licenses expire in various years
ranging from 2005 to 2013. The Company has renewed these licenses on a regular basis in
the past, and believes that it will be able to renew licenses without additional cost in the
normal course of business. Suspension or termination of the Company's main licenses or any
failure to renew any or all of these main licenses could have a material adverse effect on
the financial position and operations of the Group.

d) Restructuring

There have been a number of announcements by the Government and the Svyazinvest Group
with respect to the planned restructuring of the national telecommunications sector.
According to the latest Government announcements in view of Russia’s acceptance to the
World Trade Organization the change of the Group’s status as a monopoly supplier of long
distance and international communications will occur in 2005.  

On March 28, 2005, the Government of the Russian Federation, as required by the Communi-
cations Law, approved the Resolution No. 161, “On adoption of Rules of telecommunications
networks interconnection and interaction”.  On May 18, 2005, the Government of the Russian
Federation, also as required by the Communications Law, approved the Resolution No. 310,
“On adoption of Rules of providing local, zonal, long-distance and international telecommu-
nications services”.  The major changes introduced by the Resolutions are as follows:

• Introduction of the new order of interconnection and interaction for telecommunications
networks.

• Stipulation of the material terms of interconnection, including technical, economic and
information conditions.

• Setting the special order of interconnection and interaction with telecommunications
operator having significant influence over the public switch telecommunications network.

• Approval of the specifications of interconnection and traffic transit services provided by
telecommunications operators.

• Introduction of the new detailed regulations on signing, execution and termination of
telecommunications services agreement, stipulation of the material items of such
agreements as well as rights and obligations of counter-parties. 

• Formalization of the requirement to sign telecommunications services agreements with
properly licensed telecommunications operators only.

• Imposition on domestic and international long-distance operators certain obligations usually
carried out by the local operators. 

Currently the Company cannot evaluate reliably the impact of the new regulations on its
business and results of operations since the complete set of subordinated acts required by
the Communication Law has not been approved, including requirements to the structure of
telecommunications networks and traffic transit scheme.  

The new regulations allow telecommunications operators to apply for long-distance
telecommunications licenses.  In May 2005 long-distance licenses were awarded to three
additional telecommunications providers.  If these and other alternative operators begin
to provide nationwide long-distance telecommunications services, the market share of the
Company may be eroded.

Following the new regulations, the Company expects a new system of settlements for the
international and domestic long-distance traffic will come into force in the foreseeable future,
where end-users of long-distance services anywhere in the Russian Federation will become
the Company’s customers. After implementation of the new system, local operators will be
rendering certain services to the Company essential to provision of telecommunication
services to end-users by the Company. The new system of settlements will represent
a change in business practice resulting in a new system of accounting for the Company’s
revenues, expenses and accounts receivable and payable for changed practice. The pro-
forma information for the year ended December 31, 2004 and any preceding years calculated
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on the basis of the described new system as if it was applied throughout all preceding
periods will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the period when the new
system comes into force.  

In addition to industry restructuring plans, the Government announced plans to privatize
Svyazinvest in 2005.  Effects of the industry reform will be reflected in the Group’s financial
statements as they become known and estimable.

e) Asset retirement obligations

The Company may incur cost related to retirement of telecommunication lines and other
assets and restoration of environment.  Such costs may arise in connection with registration
of title by landlords based on the Land Code of the Russian Federation, which came into
force effective 2001.  The management believes that occurrence of such events is unlikely.
In addition, the timing and amount of such costs may not be identified and measured reliably.
The liability would be initially recognized in the period in which sufficient information exists to
estimate a range of potential settlement dates that is needed to employ a present value
technique to estimate fair value.

32. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

A portion of the Group’s accounts receivable is from the State and other public organizations.
Collection of these receivables is influenced by political and economic factors. Management
believes there were no significant unprovided losses relating to these or other receivables at
December 31, 2004.

Financial instruments that could expose the Group to concentrations of credit risk are mainly
trade and other receivables. The credit risk associated with these assets is limited due to the
Group’s large customer base and ongoing procedures to monitor the credit worthiness of
customers and other debtors.

The Group deposits available cash with several Russian banks.  Deposit insurance is not
offered to banks operating in Russia.  To manage the credit risk, the Group allocates its
available cash to a variety of Russian banks and management periodically reviews the credit
worthiness of the banks in which such deposits are held.

33. INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

Trade and other receivables and payables are non-interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities. 

Interest rates payable on the Group’s loans and other borrowings are disclosed in Note 18.

34. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK 

In 2004, approximately 12% of the Group’s revenues and 20% of the Group’s expenses were
denominated in currencies other than the Russian ruble. Revenues generated in foreign
currency represent income received from foreign operators, and foreign currency
denominated expenses consist primarily of payments to foreign operators for international
long-distance traffic termination. Accounts receivable from foreign operators and accounts
payable to foreign operators which are denominated in foreign currencies amounted to
approximately 7% of the Group’s total accounts receivable and 37% of the Group’s total
accounts payable as of December 31, 2004. All the loans received by the Group during 2004
are denominated in foreign currencies. Thus the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The Group does not have formal arrangements to mitigate foreign exchange risks of the
Group’s operations. However, management believes that the Group is secured from foreign
exchange risks as foreign currency denominated sales are used to cover repayment of foreign
currency denominated purchases and loans. 

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2005 the Company sold its 20% interest in ZAO Telmos to AFK “Systema”, which is
unrelated party, for a cash payment of 235. This consideration exceeds the carrying value as
of December 31, 2004.

In March 2005 the Company sold its 45% interest in ZAO Telecom-Center to OOO “Orbita”,
which is unrelated party, for a cash payment of 68. This consideration exceeds the carrying
value as of December 31, 2004.

In March 2005 new regulations in the national telecommunication sector were put in force
(refer to Note 31).

In April 2005 the Group acquired 19% shares of Svyazintek for a cash payment of less than 1.

In April 2005 the shareholders’ meeting of GlobalTel approved the new GlobalTel’s charter
which provides preferred rights to the Company compared to the other shareholder, including
abolishment of certain of the other shareholder’s rights.  The Group is currently in process of
assessing the potential impact of these changes on the effective control over GlobalTel and
the respective treatment of investment in GlobalTel in the Group’s financial statements.
Changes in effective control will be accounted for prospectively from the date of such
changes. 

36. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES 

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) which differ in certain respects from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”).   

The principal differences between IFRS and US GAAP are presented below together with
explanations of certain adjustments that affect total shareholders’ equity as of December 31,
2004 and 2003 and net income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002.  

Reconciliation of net income (loss)

2003 2002
(as restated, (as restated,

2004  see Note 2) see Note 2)

Net income reported under IFRS 4,298 398 739 

US GAAP adjustments:

Depreciation on reversed impairment charge (a) (889) (800) (602)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments (b) (42) (68) (41)

Pension expense (c) - (30) (20)

Impact of difference in accounting for investments acquired 

for resale, net of minority interest (d) - 59 (59)  

Impact of goodwill amortization, net of minority interest (d) 135 92 35 

Partial gain recognition (e) - - (3)

Reversal of impairment on investment in equity method 

investee (f) - 55 (55)

Deferred tax effects of US GAAP adjustments 177 123 140 

Total (619) (569) (605)

Net income/ (loss) under US GAAP 3,679 (171) 134 
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Earnings per share 

2003 2002
(as restated, (as restated,

2004 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Net income from continuing operations 3,679 2,915 2,407 

Net loss from discontinued operations - (3,086) (2,273)

Total net income/ (loss) 3,679 (171) 134 

Preferred Ordinary Preferred Ordinary Preferred Ordinary 
shares shares shares shares shares shares

Weighted average number 

of shares outstanding 242,831,469 728,696,320 242,831,469 728,696,320 242,831,469 728,696,320

Earnings per share – 

continuing operations 3.79 3.79 3.00 3.00 2.48 2.48 

Losses per share – 

discontinued operations - - (3.18) (3.18) (2.34) (2.34)

Total earnings /(losses)

per share 3.79 3.79 (0.18) (0.18) 0.14 0.14 

Basic and diluted earnings per share are the same for all periods presented, as there are no
potentially dilutive instruments.

Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity

2003 
(as restated,

2004 see Note 2)

Total shareholders’ equity under IFRS 50,838 47,970  

US GAAP adjustments:

Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment (a) 4,328 5,217 

Impact of goodwill amortization, net of minority interest (d) 262 127 

Partial gain recognition, net of tax (e) (3) (3)

Deferred tax (344) (511)

Total 4,243 4,830 

Total shareholders’ equity under US GAAP 55,081 52,800 

Restatement of previously issued financial statements 

As discussed in Note 2, in 2004, the Group corrected certain revenues from local operators
and respective expenses, and accounts receivable and payable as of December 31, 2003 and
the two years then ended.

At the March 17 - 18, 2004 meeting, the EITF Task Force reached a consensus on certain
issues related to “participating securities” and the application of the “two-class method”
under FAS No. 128, “Earnings per share.” EITF Issue No. 03-6, “Participating Securities and
the Two-Class Method Under FASB Statement No. 128,” provides guidance in determining
when a security participates in dividends such that the two-class method must be used to
calculate earnings per share. EITF Issue No. 03-6 clarifies that undistributed earnings for a
period should be allocated to a participating security based on the contractual participation
rights of the security to share in those current earnings. Nonetheless, if the terms of a security
do not specify objectively determinable, nondiscretionary participation rights, then
undistributed earnings would not be allocated based on arbitrary assumptions. Also, if an
entity could avoid distributions of undistributed earnings to participating security holders,
then no allocation of that period's earnings to the participating security would be made.
As described above, the Company’s preferred shares are considered participating equity
instruments. Accordingly, following this guidance, the Group has revised the methods of
calculation of earnings per share to properly apply the “two-class method” of calculation.

The reconciliation of earnings per share, as restated, and earnings per share previously
reported for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002

Total earnings per share – continuing operations, as previously reported 3.75 2.90 

Restatement of revenues and expenses from local operators (refer to Note 2) (0.18) 0.08 

Application of the “two-class method” (0.57) (0.50)

Total earnings per share – continuing operations, as restated 3.00 2.48 

2003 2002

Total losses per share – discontinued operations, as previously reported (4.16) (3.12)

Adoption of “two-class method” 1.03 0.78 

Other changes (refer to (b) below) (0.05) - 

Total losses per share - discontinued operations, as restated (3.18) (2.34)

2003 2002

Total losses per share, as previously reported (0.41) (0.22)

Restatement of revenues and expenses from local operators (refer to Note 2) (0.18) 0.08 

Adoption of “two-class method” 0.46 0.28 

Other changes (refer to (b) below) (0.05) - 

Total (losses)/ earnings per share, as restated (0.18) 0.14

(a) Reversal of impairment on property, plant and equipment 

In 1998, in accordance with IAS No. 36, “Impairment of Assets”, the Group recognized an
impairment loss of 8,699 on its property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress.  The impairment loss was calculated based on the present value of estimated future
cash flows from the continued use of the assets using a real-terms (inflation adjusted)
discount rate of 20%.   

IAS No. 36 requires an assessment of the recoverable amount of an asset whenever there is
an indication that the Group’s assets may be impaired.  Management believed that the
Russian economic crisis in 1998 constituted such an indication.   

Under US GAAP, SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of” (superseded by SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001), requires an initial assessment of impairment
based on undiscounted cash flows whenever there is an indication that impairment may exist.
Due to the fact that the sum of undiscounted expected future cash flows was in excess of the
carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 1998, an
impairment loss was not recognized for US GAAP reporting purposes.  Management
considers that all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, with the exception of
construction in progress, represent the lowest level for which there are largely independent
and identifiable cash flows.   

Since no impairment loss was recognized under US GAAP in 1998, a different asset base is
used to compute US GAAP depreciation expense, loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and the related deferred tax liability commencing 1999.   

Based on management’s analysis, the sum of undiscounted expected future cash flows was
in excess of the carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as of
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, thus, no impairment loss was recognized under US
GAAP.   

Deferred tax effect was computed using tax rate of 24% for 2004, 2003 and 2002. Deferred
tax benefit recognized on reversal of impairment on property, plant and equipment in 2004,
2003 and 2002 represents the effects of reversal of the temporary differences associated with
disposals and additional depreciation. 



OAO ROSTELECOM / Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 200499OAO ROSTELECOM / Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 200498

(b) Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments  

In accordance with IAS No. 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
gains or losses from change in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale
investments may be included in net profit and loss for the period in which they arise.
The Group has chosen to include unrealized gains and losses on the investments in the
determination of net income.

Under US GAAP, SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities”, provides that such available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, to be excluded from earnings and reported as a
separate component of comprehensive income. Unrealized gains and losses represent the
net change in fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale.  Declines in value
of available-for-sale securities judged to be other than temporary are recognized in the
statement of operations.  In 2004, the calculation of the tax effect of unrealized gain was
revised for 2003.

(c) Pension expense and obligations 

The Company made certain payments to employees on retirement. These obligations were
substantially similar to those typically existing under a defined benefit pension scheme.   

IAS No. 19, “Employee Benefits”, was issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board to revise existing standards relating to retirement benefits cost, and became effective
for the financial statements beginning on or after January 1, 1999.  In accordance with US
GAAP, similar issues are covered by SFAS No. 87, “Employer’s Accounting For Pensions”.
Under both standards, pension expense is based upon a specified methodology that includes
a designated actuarial approach and reflects the concept of accrual accounting.  Pension
expense is reflected in the consolidated statement of income systematically over the working
lives of employees covered by the plan.  Plan amendments (including initiation of a plan) often
include provisions that grant increased benefits based on services rendered in prior periods.
Because plan amendments are granted with the expectation that the employer would realize
economic benefits in future periods, SFAS No. 87 does not require the cost of providing such
retroactive benefits (that is, prior service cost) to be included in net periodic pension cost
entirely in the year of the amendment.  SFAS No. 87 provides for recognition of prior service
cost during the future service periods of employees who are expected to receive benefits
under the plan.    

In accordance with IAS 19, prior service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested (i.e. become no longer
conditional on future employment).  To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, an enterprise
should recognize prior service cost immediately.   

As of December 31, 2002, prior service cost as recorded in IFRS accounts have been fully
recognized.  In US GAAP accounts, unrecognized transition amounts were amortized over 20
years. 

(d) Accounting for investments in associates 

Before IFRS No.5 was adopted, the Group accounted for an investment in associate that was
acquired and held exclusively with a view to its disposal in the near future as an available-for-
sale financial asset in accordance with IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.  

In 2002 the Group acquired and, in 2003, sold certain investments which in the normal course
of business would qualify for equity method accounting. In IFRS accounts these investments
were classified and accounted for as available-for-sale.

Effective January 1, 2002, SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets”, eliminated the exception to application of the equity method for an investment in
associates where significant influence is likely to be temporary. Accordingly, in US GAAP
accounts, the investments in these associates were accounted for using equity method of
accounting.

Amount of (59) reported in the reconciliation of net income and shareholders’ equity for 2002
above represents the difference between the amount of gain from changes in the fair value of
these available-for-sale investments, recognized in the IFRS accounts, and the amount of
equity income, reported under the US GAAP, net of minority interest. 

In 2003 these investments were sold. Accordingly, the differences in accounting for these
investments under IFRS and US GAAP, reported in prior periods, were reversed in 2003. 

As described in Note 9, during 2002, the Group acquired 15% of voting stock of Golden
Telecom, Inc. In the opinion of management, the Group exercised significant influence over
financial and operating policies of Golden Telecom. In accordance with IAS No. 28,
“Accounting for Investments in Associates”, the Group amortized the equity method goodwill
related to its investment in Golden Telecom over its estimated useful life of 8 years. During
2002, in its IFRS accounts, the Group recognized related amortization expense in the amount
of 32. Also, during 2002, in its IFRS accounts, the Group recognized goodwill of 42 in
connection with certain business combinations and purchases of minority interest.
Amortization of related goodwill in 2002 amounted to 3. During 2004 and 2003 the equity
method goodwill related to investment in Golden Telecom recognized in IFRS accounts
amounted to 135 and 95, respectively. 

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill is not
amortized and is subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with SFAS No. 142.
The Group performed the annual impairment test in respect to recoverability of the carrying
amount of goodwill at December 31, 2004 and 2003 by comparing the fair value to the
carrying amount. Fair value exceeded the carrying amount and the Group did not recognize
any impairment loss.  

(e) Partial gain recognition

During 2002 the Group completed a sale of its 50% interest in EDN Sovintel to Golden
Telecom in exchange for a cash payment of US$10 million, no-interest bearing US$46 million
promissory note and 15% of then outstanding ordinary shares of Golden Telecom. 

In connection with this transaction, in its IFRS accounts, the Group recognized a gain of
1,733, which represented a difference between fair value of the total consideration received
and the carrying amount of the investment in EDN Sovintel as of the date of sale, net of direct
costs associated with the transaction. Before the sale to Golden Telecom, the Group
accounted for its investment in EDN Sovintel using equity method.  

In its US GAAP accounts, in accordance with requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No. 01-02, “Interpretations of APB 29”, the Group recognized a gain of 1,730.
The difference of 3 between the amount of gain recognized under IFRS and US GAAP
pertains to a portion of the gain represented by the economic interest retained by the Group. 

(f) Reversal of impairment on investment in equity method investee

During 2002 due to certain changes in management’s estimates and in accordance with
provisions of IAS No. 36, “Impairment of Assets”, in its IFRS accounts the Group recorded a
partial reversal of impairment loss of 55 recognized in 2001 in connection with its investment
in MCC, which is accounted for using equity method. 
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US GAAP prohibits reversals of previously recognized impairment losses.

In 2003 the investment in MCC was sold. Accordingly, all differences in accounting for this
investment under IFRS and US GAAP reported in prior periods reversed in 2003. 

Investments in associates

The following table presents summarized income statement and balance sheet information of
the Group’s significant equity method investee, EDN Sovintel, for the period from January 1,
2002 to September 16, 2002 (the date of its disposal, refer to Note 9, translated into Rubles
using exchange rate as of December 31, 2002):  

2002

Income statement information

Revenues 3,218

Operating income 822

Net income 607

Summarized financial information for 2002 for the Group’s unconsolidated investment in
GlobalTel was as follows (translated into Rubles using exchange rate as of December 31,
2002):

2002 

Income statement information

Revenues 395

Operating loss (294)

Net loss (344)

Summarized financial information for 2003 of the Group’s significant equity method investee,
Golden Telecom, Inc, was as follows (translated into Rubles using exchange rate as of
December 31, 2003):  

2003 

Income statement information

Revenues 10,619

Operating income 2,054

Net income 1,633

Financial position information

Current assets 5,542

Non-current assets 15,937

Current liabilities 2,944

Non-current liabilities 1,365

Net assets 17,090

New US GAAP standards adopted in 2004 

The Group adopted the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 00-21 ("EITF 00-21"),
"Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables". For multiple element
arrangements entered into after December 31, 2003, EITF 00-21 addresses a vendor's
accounting for transactions involving the delivery of more than one product or service, and
when it is necessary to separate the transaction into individual component deliverables, each
with its own separate earnings process. If the conditions requiring separate revenue
recognition exist, revenue is allocated among the different deliverables based on their relative
fair values (the relative fair value of each of the component deliverables to the aggregated
relative fair value of the bundled deliverables), with revenue for each component deliverable
recognized when the revenue is realized and earned. The adoption of EITF 00-21 did not have
a material impact on the Group's results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

The Group adopted the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-8,
"Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease" ("EITF 01-8") for arrangements
entered into after December 31, 2003. EITF 01-8 addresses how to determine whether an
arrangement contains a lease that is within the scope of SFAS No. 13, "Accounting for
Leases," and requires lease accounting for contractual arrangements that explicitly or
implicitly convey the right to use (or control the use of) specific property, plant or equipment.
The adoption of EITF 01-8 did not have a material impact on the Group's results of
operations, financial position or cash flows. 

The Group adopted the remaining transitional provisions of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 46R ("FIN 46R"), "Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities" ("VIEs"), to all entities that existed prior to February 1, 2003. This interpretation
changed the accounting and requirements for consolidation and disclosure of certain entities,
including special purpose entities ("SPEs"). Under FIN 46R, an entity is considered a VIE (and
subject to consolidation) if its total equity at risk is determined insufficient to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support, or if its equity investors lack
certain characteristics that represent a controlling financial interest. An entity that is
considered a VIE would be required to be consolidated by the enterprise that holds a majority
of its "variable interests" (that is, the enterprise that has the most exposure to the economic
risks and the potential rewards from changes in the values of the VIE's assets and liabilities). 

The Group holds variable interests in VIEs where the Group is not the primary beneficiary and
which are not significant either individually or in the aggregate.  There were no VIEs created
after January 31, 2003, which would require immediate application of FIN 46R.

New accounting pronouncements 

During 2003-2004, several new standards, interpretations or revisions to existing standards
were issued.  

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of the following new or revised standards and
interpretations on its results of operations, financial position and cash flows and is in process
of developing an implementation strategy:

In December 2003, FASB Statement No. 132 (revised 2003) "Employers' Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
and 106" (FASB 132(R)) was issued. It does not change the measurement and recognition
provisions of FAS 87, 88 and 106 or the disclosure requirements of the original FAS 132,
which it replaces. FAS 132(R) requires additional disclosures about the assets, obligations,
cash flows, and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and other defined
benefit postretirement plans. For foreign plans, FAS 132(R) is effective for years ending after
June 15, 2004.

In November 2004, FASB Statement No. 151 "Inventory Costs—an amendment of ARB No.
43, Chapter 4" (FAS 151) was issued. FAS 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after November 24, 2004. FAS 151 should be applied
prospectively. 

In December 2004, FASB Statement No. 153 "Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets—an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29" (FAS 153) was issued. FAS 153 amends APB 29 to
eliminate the exception for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and
replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have
commercial substance. A non-monetary exchange has commercial substance if the future
cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. FAS
153 is effective for non-monetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted for non-monetary asset exchanges occurring in
fiscal periods beginning after December 16, 2004. FAS 153 should be applied prospectively.  
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In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) within FASB reached a consensus on
Issue No. 03-1 "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to
Certain Investments" (EITF 03-1). The issue is to determine the meaning of other-than-
temporary impairment and its application to debt and equity securities within the scope of
FASB Statement No. 115 "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities."
The impairment methodology for investments accounted for under the equity method is
predicated on the notion of other-than-temporary. The taskforce reached a consensus that
the application guidance in EITF 03-1 should be used in determining when an investment is
considered impaired, whether that impairment is other-than-temporary and the measurement
of the impairment. EITF 03-1 was effective for other-than-temporary impairment evaluation
made in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004. The Board has directed the FASB
staff to delay the effective date for the measurement and recognition guidance contained in
paragraphs 10-20 of EITF 03-1. 

In March 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue 03-16 ("EITF 03-16"),
"Accounting for Investments in Limited Liability Companies." EITF 03-16 provides guidance
about when to account for an investment in a limited liability company that maintains a
specific ownership account for each investor using the cost method or the equity method of
accounting. EITF 03-16 applies to all investments in LLCs and is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2004.  

In July 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue 02-14 ("EITF 02-14"), "Whether an
Investor Should Apply the Equity Method of Accounting to Investments Other Than Common
Stock." EITF 02-14 requires an investor to apply the equity method of accounting to
investments in common stock of a corporation or in-substance common stock of a
corporation, when the investor has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
operating and financial policies of the investee. For investments in corporations that are not
common stock or in-substance common stock that were previously accounted for under the
equity method, EITF 02-14 requires that the investor discontinue the equity method unless
required by other applicable guidance. The provisions of EITF 02-14 are effective for the first
reporting period beginning after September 15, 2004. The effects of the adoption of EITF 02-
14, if any, is to be presented as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.  

The adoption of the following new or revised standards and interpretations is not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows:

• FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004) "Share-Based Payment",
• FASB Statement No. 152 "Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions—an

amendment of FASB Statements No. 66 and 67",
• EITF Issue 04-1, "Accounting for Pre-existing Relationships between the Parties to a

Business Combination”.

Consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income
under US GAAP for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Accumu-
lated other Total

Common shares Preferred shares compre- share- 
Number Share Number of Share Retained hensive holders'

of shares capital shares capital earnings income equity

Balance as of January 1, 2002 

(as restated, see Note 2) 728,696,320 75 242,831,469 25 53,479 271 53,850 

Comprehensive income

Net income 

(as restated, see Note 2) - - - - 134 - 134 

Net change in unrealized 

gain on available-for-sale 

investments - - - - - 41 41 

Comprehensive income - - - - 134 41 175

Dividends for 2001 - - - - (399) - (399)

Balance as of December 31, 2002 

(as restated, see Note 2) 728,696,320 75 242,831,469 25 53,214 312 53,626 

Comprehensive income

Net loss (as restated, see Note 2) - - - - (171) - (171)

Net change in unrealized gain 

on available-for-sale investments - - - - - 51 51

Comprehensive loss - - - - (171) 51 (120)

Dividends for 2002 - - - - (706) - (706)

Balance as of December 31, 2003 

(as restated, see Note 2) 728,696,320 75 242,831,469 25 52,337 363 52,800 

Comprehensive income

Net income - - - - 3,679 - 3,679

Net change in unrealized 

gain on available-for-sale 

investments - - - - - 32 32

Comprehensive income - - - - 3,679 32 3,711

Dividends for 2003 - - - - (1,430) - (1,430)

Balance as of December 31, 2004 728,696,320 75 242,831,469 25 54,586 395 55,081 
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